
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA

COUNTY BOARD ROOM
GOVERNMENT CENTER, RED WING

FEBRUARY 19, 2019
9:00 A.M.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Pledge of Allegiance

Review and approve the previous board meeting minutes.

Feb 5, 2019.pdf

Review and approve the county board agenda

Review and approve the following items on the consent agenda:

Consent Agenda

Approve the Repurchase of Forfeited Property.

Re-purchase of forfeited property.pdf

REGULAR AGENDA

County Administrator's Report

Award Public Works Roof Contract

PW Roof Contract Award.pdf

February 19, 2019 Budget Committee Report.
Budget Committee Packet 

Finance Director's Report

Reimbursement Resolution for County Roof Project

Reimbursement Resolution.pdf

Human Resource Director's Report

February 19, 2019 Personnel Committee Report.
Personnel Committee Packet

Land Use Management Director's Report

CONSIDER: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means Other than Fill
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed 
dwelling above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage 
foundation. Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of 
Wacouta Point Plat located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned 
District.  

CBPacket_Caverly.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 

CBPacket_Luhman_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 7.31 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Huneke1_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.42 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 
55992. Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 
Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Huneke2_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 
the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Betcher_Redacted.pdf

For Your Information

Project Status Report.

Project Status Report 19Feb19.pdf

County Board Committee Reports

New and Old Business

Review and Approve the County Claims

Review & Approve County Claims

County Claims.pdf

adjourn

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

1.

Documents:

1.

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_02192019-1228?html=true


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA

COUNTY BOARD ROOM
GOVERNMENT CENTER, RED WING

FEBRUARY 19, 2019
9:00 A.M.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Pledge of Allegiance

Review and approve the previous board meeting minutes.

Feb 5, 2019.pdf

Review and approve the county board agenda

Review and approve the following items on the consent agenda:

Consent Agenda

Approve the Repurchase of Forfeited Property.

Re-purchase of forfeited property.pdf

REGULAR AGENDA

County Administrator's Report

Award Public Works Roof Contract

PW Roof Contract Award.pdf

February 19, 2019 Budget Committee Report.
Budget Committee Packet 

Finance Director's Report

Reimbursement Resolution for County Roof Project

Reimbursement Resolution.pdf

Human Resource Director's Report

February 19, 2019 Personnel Committee Report.
Personnel Committee Packet

Land Use Management Director's Report

CONSIDER: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means Other than Fill
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed 
dwelling above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage 
foundation. Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of 
Wacouta Point Plat located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned 
District.  

CBPacket_Caverly.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 

CBPacket_Luhman_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 7.31 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Huneke1_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.42 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 
55992. Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 
Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Huneke2_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 
the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Betcher_Redacted.pdf

For Your Information

Project Status Report.

Project Status Report 19Feb19.pdf

County Board Committee Reports

New and Old Business

Review and Approve the County Claims

Review & Approve County Claims

County Claims.pdf

adjourn

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

1.

Documents:

1.

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/AgendaCenter/ViewFile/Agenda/_02192019-1236?packet=true


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
AGENDA

COUNTY BOARD ROOM
GOVERNMENT CENTER, RED WING

FEBRUARY 19, 2019
9:00 A.M.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST

Pledge of Allegiance

Review and approve the previous board meeting minutes.

Feb 5, 2019.pdf

Review and approve the county board agenda

Review and approve the following items on the consent agenda:

Consent Agenda

Approve the Repurchase of Forfeited Property.

Re-purchase of forfeited property.pdf

REGULAR AGENDA

County Administrator's Report

Award Public Works Roof Contract

PW Roof Contract Award.pdf

February 19, 2019 Budget Committee Report.
Budget Committee Packet 

Finance Director's Report

Reimbursement Resolution for County Roof Project

Reimbursement Resolution.pdf

Human Resource Director's Report

February 19, 2019 Personnel Committee Report.
Personnel Committee Packet

Land Use Management Director's Report

CONSIDER: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means Other than Fill
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed 
dwelling above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage 
foundation. Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of 
Wacouta Point Plat located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned 
District.  

CBPacket_Caverly.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 

CBPacket_Luhman_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 7.31 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Huneke1_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.42 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 
55992. Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 
Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Huneke2_Redacted.pdf

CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES)
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 
the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District.  

CBPacket_Betcher_Redacted.pdf

For Your Information

Project Status Report.

Project Status Report 19Feb19.pdf

County Board Committee Reports

New and Old Business

Review and Approve the County Claims

Review & Approve County Claims

County Claims.pdf

adjourn

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

2.

1.

Documents:

1.

1.

Documents:

2.

Documents:

3.

Documents:

4.

Documents:

5.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

1.

Documents:

https://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/38f7eed3-e32c-4926-a70e-15305bec9fb4


 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS' PROCEEDINGS, GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
 FEBRUARY 5, 2019  
 

 
 

Page 4188

4188 

The Goodhue County Board of Commissioners met on Tuesday, February 5, 2019, at 5:00 p.m. in the County Board 
Room, Government Center, Red Wing, MN with Commissioners Anderson, Majerus, Nesseth, Drotos and Safe were 
all present.    
 
C/Anderson asked if there were any disclosures of interest.  There were none. 
 
1 Moved by C/Majerus, seconded by C/Drotos, and carried to approve the January 22, 2018, County Board 

Minutes. 
 

2 Moved by C/Drotos, seconded by C/Safe, and carried to approve the amended February 5, 2019, County Board 
Agenda. 
 

3 Moved by C/Nesseth, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve the following items on the consent 
agenda: 
 
C/Nesseth requested that item # 2 be removed for discussion. 
 

1. Approve the Off-Site Gambling Application for Wells Creek Riders Snowmobile Club at Mt 
Frontenac Golf Course on February 23, 2019. 

2.  
3. Approve Out of State Travel Request. 
4. Approve the Tuition Remibursement for J. Ziemer. 
5. Approve Tuition Reimbursement for Josh Stehr, Sheriff Dept. 
6. Approve the Revised Resolution for the Cannon Valley Trail-Tractor Mower Grant. 
7. Approve the Revised Resolution for the Cannon Valley Trail-Trail Counter Grant. 
8. Approve 2019 Pay Equity Report. 

 
2.  Approve the 2019-2021 City of Dennison Law Enforcement Contract.  C/Nesseth questioned how many hours   

were included in the contract.  Administrator Arneson noted that the hours were listed in the contract under section 
#3 which stated it was for five hours per week. 

 
4 Moved by C/Nesseth, seconded by C/Majerus, and carried to approve the 2019-2021 City of Dennison Law 

Enforcement Contract. 
 
PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
Award Signal Upgrades Contract SP 2510-53. Staff recommended the board approve to award the TH 58/CSAH 
21/Pioneer Road Flashing Yellow Signal and ADA Improvement Contract to Pember Companies, Inc. with the 
lowest responsible bid of $113,256 and change order authority not to exceed 10% of the approved bid. 
 
5 Moved by C/Drotos, seconded by C/Nesseth, and carried to approve to award the TH 58/CSAH 21/Pioneer 

Road Flashing Yellow Signal and ADA Improvement Contract to Pember Companies, Inc. with the lowest 
responsible bid of $113,256 and change order authority not to exceed 10% of the approved bid. 

 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS:  Deferred 
C/Drotos   

C/Nesseth   

C/Anderson   

C/Majerus   

C/Safe   

Administrator 
Arneson 

  

 
 
 



 BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS' PROCEEDINGS, GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 
 FEBRUARY 5, 2019  
 

 
 

Page 4189

4189 

 
 

Review and Approve the County Claims 
 
6 Moved by C/Drotos, seconded by C/Nesseth, and carried to approve to pay the County claims in the amount 

of 01-General Revenue $473,528.86, 03-Public Works $132,721.97, 11- Human Service Fund $70,790.76, 
21-ISTS $00, 25- EDA $831.00, 30-Capital Improvement $00, 31-Capital Equipment $00, 34-Capital 
Equipment $2,990.00, 35-Debt Services $1,574,790.00, 40-County Ditch $00, 61-Waste Management 
$21,657.63, 62-Recycling Center $00, 63-HHW $00, 72-Other Agency Funds $11,851.17, 81-Settlement 
$863,227.24, in the total amount of $3,152,388.63. 

 
 
 
 
7 Moved by C/Safe, seconded by C/Drotos, and carried to approve to adjourn the February 5, 2019, County 

Board Meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
MINUTE 
 

1. Approved January 22,  2019  County Board Meeting Minutes as amended.   (Motion carried 5-0) 

2. Approved the February 5, 2019 County Board Meeting Agenda.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

3. Approved the Consent Agenda.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

4. Approved the 2019-2021 Dennison Policing Contract.  (Motion carried 5-0) 

5. Approved to award Contract SP 2510-53.   (Motion carried 5-0) 

6. Approved the County Claims.  (Motion carried 5-0)  

7. Approved to adjourn the February 5, 2019  County Board Meeting.  (Motion carried 5-0)  

 
SCOTT O. ARNESON 
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR 

  
BRAD ANDERSON, CHAIRMAN 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
  



Brian Anderson 
Finance Director 
Goodhue County  

 
Brian.Anderson@co.goodhue.mn.us 

509 W. Fifth St. 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

 Office (651) 385.3040 
 Fax (651) 267-4878 

 
 
TO: Board of Commissioners 
   
FROM:   Brian Anderson, Finance Director 
  
DATE:  February 5, 2019  
 
RE:  Approval of repurchase of tax-forfeited land  
 
Summary 
 
Parcel 55.080.0620 forfeited to the State of MN due to nonpayment of property taxes. Homeowner 
Brenda Wilson has received numerous notices from us that the property would forfeit if taxes were not 
current and/or she confessed judgment. On May 14, 2018 the property forfeited. There was an eviction 
hearing that took place on January 25th. At that meeting, Ms. Wilson requested to repurchase the 
property.  We worked with her on a timeline and indicated that upon your approval she has 30 days to 
make full payment on all past due taxes, penalty, interest and costs ($14,668.04). Should we not 
receive full payment by Tuesday, March 19th the eviction hearing will take place on April 1st and she 
will no longer have the opportunity to repurchase her house under these conditions. 
 
 Background 
 
MN Statute 282.241 states that at this point in the process the property owner or taxpayer does not 
have a right to repurchase the property; however, they do have the privilege of submitting a written 
application to the county board, requesting to repurchase a parcel of tax-forfeited property.  The county 
board by resolution has the authority and responsibility to approve or disapprove any written request 
for repurchase.  
 
The county board’s approval is to be given only if at least one of the following conditions is 
determined to be true. 
 

1. The county board is to determine that the undue hardship or injustice resulting from the tax 
forfeiture will be corrected by the repurchase. 

2. The county board is to determine that the repurchase will best serve the public interest. 
 
Recommendation 
 
We feel condition #2 above is met and staff recommend the board approve the repurchase of parcel 
55.080.0620.  
 
 
 
 



 RESOLUTION FOR REPURCHSASE OF FORFEITED LANDS 
 
 
WHEREAS, property located in the City of Red Wing described as parcel 55.080.0620 forfeited to the 
State of MN for delinquent taxes in the 2013 payable 2014 and subsequent years, as provided by the 
appropriate statutes, and 
 
WHEREAS, MS 282.241 provides for repurchase after forfeiture of tax by aggregate of all delinquent 
taxes and assessments, together with penalties, interest and costs which would have accrued had said 
lands not forfeited to the State, unless prior to the time of repurchase such parcels shall have been sold, 
and 
 
WHEREAS, this Board has determined that said repurchase would best serve the public interest;  
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Brenda Wilson, be authorized to repurchase property 
referred to above, under the provisions of the above mentioned statute, provided that payment is made 
in the sum of all taxes, assessments, penalties, interest and costs. The property will be placed back into 
the name of Brenda Wilson, as it was at the time of forfeiture. 



GOODHUE COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

RONALD ALLEN 
1st District 

1713 Siewert Street 
Red Wing, MN 55066 

BRAD ANDERSON 
2nd District 

10679 375th St.  
Cannon Falls, MN 55009 

BARNEY NESSETH 
3rd District 

41595 Co. 8 Blvd 
Zumbrota, MN  55992 

JASON MAJERUS 
4th District 

39111 Co. 2 Blvd 
Goodhue, MN  55027 

PAUL DROTOS 
5th District 

1825 Twin Bluff Rd.  
Red Wing, MN 55066 

 
An Equal Opportunity Employer 

                                                                                             Scott O. Arneson 
Goodhue County Administrator  

Goodhue County  
   

509 W. Fifth St. 
  Red Wing, MN 55066 

 Office (651) 385.3001 
 Fax  (651) 267-4873 

 
 
 
Date:  February 14, 2019 
 
To:  Goodhue County Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Scott O. Arneson, County Administrator 
  Stacy Lance, Administrative Assistant 
 
Re:  Award Contract 
 
 
The 2019 capital plan includes $570,000 for the replacement of the roof on the Public 
Works Building at 2140 Pioneer Road in Red Wing. As a reminder, the intent is for this 
project to be paid for with bonding dollars.  In order to use bonding as the source of 
funding, the Finance Director will need approval for the bond reimbursement 
resolution that is on the agenda following this item.   
 
In an effort to get the best pricing and on a contractors schedule immediately this 
spring, this project went out to bid after the budget was approved in December 2018.    
The Garland Roof is the same roof as the other County Buildings and comes with a 30 
year warranty.  
 
Attached is the summary of the five bids that were received on Monday, January 28, 
2018.    Staff recommends the attached recommendation of The Garland Company, 
Inc. to award the contract to the lowest bidder, McPhillips Bros. Roofing Company, St. 
Paul for $550,000.    



 

 

   THE GARLAND COMPANY, INC. 
HIGH PERFORMANCE ROOFING AND BUILDING ENVELOPE SOLUTIONS 

  3800 EAST 91ST. STREET • CLEVELAND, OHIO 44105-2197 

PHONE: (216) 641-7500 • FAX: (216) 641-0633 

NATIONWIDE: 1-800-321-9336 

                                                     

BRIAN SKOOG 

 Phone: (612) 810-4336 

 E-Mail: bskoog@garlandind.com 
 

January 28, 2019  

 

Mr. Scott Arneson 

Goodhue County  

509 West Fifth St.  

Red Wing, MN  55066 

 

Dear Mr. Arneson: 

 

On Thursday, January 28th, 2019 @ 10:00AM sealed bids were opened for the 2019 roof project for 

the Goodhue Public Works Facility. 

  

Please find attached the bid tabulation for this project.  Based on the bid results it is the 

recommendation to award the Base Bid to McPhillips Bros. Roofing of North St. Paul, MN for the 

amount of $550,000.  

 

McPhillips Bros. Roofing Company has submitted all of the required paperwork along with their bid 

form as required by the project specifications and the State of Minnesota.  McPhillips Bros. Roofing 

Company is a reputable company and is approved by the roof system material manufacturer.  
 

If you have any further questions or require further information please feel free to contact me at 612-

810-4336. 

 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 
 

Brian Skoog 

The Garland Company 
 

mailto:bBskoog@garlandind.com


BIDDER BIDDER BIDDER BIDDER BIDDER

Ettel And Franz Roofing Berwald Roofing McPhillips Bros. Roofing Interstate Roofing Palmer West Roofing

BID SECURITY X X X X X

ADDENDA REC'D. X X X X X

ATTACHMENT A: MN RESPONSIBLE 

CONTRACTOR AFFIDAVIT X X X X X

BASE BID SECTIONS: All Areas $784,300 $603,300 $550,000 $598,750 $694,800 

Unit Price for Damaged Insulation 

Replacement Brd/Ft
$4.00 $1.90 $1.00 $2.00 $2.00

Unit Price for Deck Repair Sq/Ft $35.00 $9.00 $10.00 $10.00 $8.00

Unit Price for Drain Replacement $2,200 $1,500 $750 $1,500 $1,200

ROOFING COMPANY

NOTES: McPhillip Bros. Roofing Company, North St. Paul, MN is the low, responsible bidder.  McPhiilips Bros. is a quality applicator and is approved by the roof system manufacturer for this installation.  The recommedation is to 

award the Base Bid of $550,000 to McPillips Bros. Roofing.

Goodhue County Public Works

Bid Tabulation - 2019 Roofing Project

OWNER: Goodhue County

January 28th, 2019 @ 10:00AM

1



Brian J. Anderson 
 Finance Director 

Goodhue County Finance & Taxpayer Services  
  

Brian.Anderson@co.goodhue.mn.us 
509 W. Fifth St 

Red Wing, MN 55066 
                                                                           Phone (651) 385-3043 

 Fax (651) 267-4878 
  
 
 
TO:   County Board of Commissioners   

FROM:  Brian J. Anderson, Finance Director  

SUBJECT:  Reimbursement Resolution for County Roof Project 

DATE:   February 19, 2019 
 
 

BACKGROUND: 
At their final budget meeting on December 6th, 2018, the County Board approved the 
Capital Plan that had directed $570,000 to be spent on the Public Works roof 
replacement.  The revenue source to pay for this expenditure was initially allocated from 
the same bond issuance that would coincide with the landfill project.  However, staff and 
the Board will not be able to act on that item until fall of 2019 but staff would still like to 
move ahead with the roof project at this time in order to take advantage of the good bid 
pricing.   
 
Therefore, in accordance with IRS Regulation 1.150-2(d)(3), staff is asking that the 
Board approve the following resolution to ensure that the County can pay for the project 
upfront with cash and then reimburse itself once the bond proceeds have been collected 
in the fall of 2019.  Should the landfill project not get approved, then staff would have to 
come up with an alternative funding source.    
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff is recommending that the County Board approve the Reimbursement Resolution 
for County Roof Project in order to proceed with the roof project and reimburse 
ourselves at a later date with bonding proceeds.   



GOODHUE COUNTY, MINNESOTA 
  

RESOLUTION 
 

DECLARING THE OFFICIAL INTENT OF GOODHUE COUNTY TO REIMBURSE  
CERTAIN EXPENDITURES FROM THE PROCEEDS  

OF BONDS TO BE ISSUED BY THE COUNTY 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Internal Revenue Service has issued Treas. Reg. § 1.150-2 (the 
“Reimbursement Regulations”) providing that proceeds of tax-exempt bonds used to reimburse 
prior expenditures will not be deemed spent unless certain requirements are met; and 
 
 WHEREAS, Goodhue County, Minnesota (the “County”), expects to incur certain 
expenditures that may be financed temporarily from sources other than bonds, and reimbursed 
from the proceeds of a tax-exempt bond;  
 
 WHEREAS, the County has determined to make this declaration of official intent (the 
“Declaration”) to reimburse certain costs from proceeds of bonds in accordance with the 
Reimbursement Regulations. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF THE 
COUNTY AS FOLLOWS: 
 
 1. The County proposes to undertake the following projects (together, the “Projects”): 
 
  (a) Public Works Roof Replacement_ ($570,000); 
  
 2. The County reasonably expects to reimburse the expenditures made for certain costs of the 

Projects from the proceeds of bonds in an estimated maximum principal amount of 
$_570,000____.  All reimbursed expenditures will be capital expenditures, costs of issuance 
of the bonds, or other expenditures eligible for reimbursement under Section 1.150-2(d)(3) 
of the Reimbursement Regulations. 

 
 3. This Declaration has been made not later than 60 days after payment of any 

original expenditure to be subject to a reimbursement allocation with respect to 
the proceeds of bonds, except for the following expenditures: (a) costs of 
issuance of bonds; (b) costs in an amount not in excess of $100,000 or 5 percent of 
the proceeds of an issue; or (c) “preliminary expenditures” up to an amount not in 
excess of 20 percent of the aggregate issue price of the issue or issues that finance 
or are reasonably expected by the County to finance the projects for which the 
preliminary expenditures were incurred.  The term “preliminary expenditures” 
includes architectural, engineering, surveying, bond issuance, and similar costs that 
are incurred prior to commencement of acquisition, construction or rehabilitation of 
a project, other than land acquisition, site preparation, and similar costs incident to 
commencement of construction. 

 
4. This Declaration is an expression of the reasonable expectations of the County 

based on the facts and circumstances known to the County as of the date hereof.  
The anticipated original expenditures for the Projects and the principal amount of 
the bonds described in paragraph 2 are consistent with the County’s budgetary 



and financial circumstances.  No sources other than proceeds of bonds to be 
issued by the County are, or are reasonably expected to be, reserved, allocated 
on a long-term basis, or otherwise set aside pursuant to the County’s budget or 
financial policies to pay such Projects expenditures. 

 
5. This Declaration is intended to constitute a declaration of official intent for 

purposes of the Reimbursement Regulations. 
 
  
Approved by the Board of Commissioners of Goodhue County this 19th day of February, 2019. 
 
 
 
      
 ___________________________________ 
       Brad Anderson, Chairperson 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
__________________________________________ 
Scott O. Arneson, County Administrator 



 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 

Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 

Building | Planning | Zoning  

Telephone: 651.385.3104 

Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 

Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  County Board 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 
Report date: February 12, 2019 
 
CONSIDER: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means Other 
than Fill 
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed 
dwelling above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage 
foundation. Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of 
Wacouta Point Plat located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned District.  
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) 
Address of zoning request: TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066 
Parcel(s): 43.230.0060 
Abbreviated Legal Description: Lot 6, Block 1 of Wacouta Point Plat located in Sect 31 Twp 113, 
Range 13 in Wacouta Township 
Township Information: Wacouta Township endorsed acknowledgment of the Applicant’s request. 
Zoning District: R1 (Suburban Residence District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary (excerpt of submitted materials; full submittal available 
from LUM Department upon request) 
Site Map(s) 
Article 4, Section 4 CUP Floodplain review addendum 
February 11, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Summary:  
The applicant (Curt Caverly) has entered an agreement to purchase the subject parcel from the 
current owner (John Enblom) with the intent of constructing a new 4-bedroom dwelling on the site. 
The proposed 2,942 square foot 2-story waterfront home would be located within shoreland and 
Special Flood Hazard Area (floodplain) of the Mississippi River (Lake Pepin).  

FEMA rules divide the floodplain areas of lakes and rivers into 2 distinct zones referred to as the 
“floodway” (areas in the path of flowing water during flood events) and the “flood-fringe” (areas 
inundated with floodwater during flood events). The GCZO does not permit new dwellings within 
floodway areas. Dwellings can be constructed within a flood-fringe provided the habitable areas are 
elevated to the Regulatory Flood Protection Elevation (RFPE). The RFPE is the Base Flood Elevation 
plus one foot of “free-board.”  

The primary method for elevating to the RFPE is to construct the building on fill. Per GCZO, 
alternative methods for elevating a structures lowest floor to the RFPE such as by stilts, pilings, 
parallel walls, crawl spaces, or tuck-under garages shall require the approval of a CUP. The applicant 
is proposing to elevate the proposed home to the RFPE by use of tuck-under garage foundation.  

There are 5 existing homes situated in the Wacouta Point floodplain. Though currently vacant, the 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 2 of 4 

subject property has historically been occupied by a dwelling.  

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

 

Project Summary: 
Property/Building Information: 
 The subject property consists of a single 100 foot by 150 feet parcel (15,000 square feet). The 

property is zoned R1 (Suburban Residence District) and is located within the Wacouta Point Plat 
(1921). Per GCZO Article 24 the minimum lot size for an R1 parcel is 20,000 square feet. The lot 
existed prior to current minimum lot area requirements. The parcel does meet current 
requirements for minimum lot depth (125 feet) and width (100 feet). 

 Parcel access is located off of Lakeview Avenue approximately a quarter-mile west of the parcel.  
Emergency vehicle access to the site is limited during flood events as there is no dryland access 
route to the dwellings on Wacouta Point. Flooding along the Mississippi River is generally not a 
“flash flood” and residents have time to evacuate the area as necessary. 

 The property is bordered by R1 zoning districts on all sides. Adjacent land uses include 
undeveloped woodlands and the Mississippi River to the east and west; medium-density 
residential to the north and south (Wacouta Beach Subdivision). 

 The applicant intends to construct a 4-bedroom, 2942 square foot stick-built 2-story home atop a 
9-foot tall tuck-under garage concrete poured-wall foundation.  

The “tuck under” garage area would be used for parking and cold storage only.  

Floodplain: 
 The Base Flood Elevation (BFE) at the site has been determined to be 682 feet mean sea level. 

The RFPE is therefore 683 feet mean sea level. The proposed building location is not within the 
FEMA identified floodway portion of the floodplain.  

 Per GCZO Article 32, Section 5 Alternative elevation methods other than the use of fill may be 
utilized to elevate a structure's lowest floor above the RFPE. These alternative methods may 
include the use of stilts, pilings, parallel walls, etc., or above grade enclosed areas such as crawl 
spaces or tuck under garages. The base or floor of an enclosed area shall be considered above 
grade and not a structure's basement or lowest floor if:  

1. If the enclosed area is above grade on at least one side of the structure.  

2. Is designed to internally flood and is constructed with flood-resistant materials.  

3. Is used solely for parking of vehicles, building access or storage.  

The above noted alternative elevation methods are subject to the following additional 
standards:  

a. Design and Certification. The structure's design and as-built condition must be certified by 
a registered professional engineer or architect as being in compliance with the general design 
standards of the State Building Code and, specifically, that all electrical, heating, ventilation, 
plumbing and air conditioning equipment and other service facilities must be at or above the 
RFPE or be designed to prevent flood water from entering or accumulating within these 
components during times of flooding.  

b. Specific Standards for Above Grade, Enclosed Areas. Above grade fully enclosed areas such 
as crawl spaces or tuck under garages must be designed to internally flood and the design 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 3 of 4 

plans must stipulate:  

i. A minimum area of “automatic” openings in the walls where internal flooding is to be 
used as a flood-proofing technique. There shall be a minimum of two openings on at least 
two sides of the structure and the bottom of all openings shall be no higher than one (1) foot 
above grade. The automatic openings shall have a minimum net area of not less than one 
square inch for every square foot of enclosed area subject to flooding unless a registered 
professional engineer or architect certifies that a smaller net area would suffice. The 
automatic openings may be equipped with screens, louvers, vales or other coverings or 
devices provided that they permit the automatic entry and exit of flood waters without any 
form of human intervention. 

ii. That the enclosed area will be designed of flood-resistant materials in accordance with 
the FP-3 or FP-4 classifications in the State Building Code and shall be used solely for 
building access, parking of vehicles, or storage 

 The applicant is proposing to elevate the habitable floors, as well as all machinery and equipment 
servicing the building to 687 feet, mean sea level. The existing grade around the structure ranges 
from 675.4-676.6 feet mean sea level. A preliminary Elevation Certificate has been prepared by 
Johnson-Schofield surveying.  

 The applicant has submitted engineered plans for meeting flood proofing requirements which 
have been prepared by Larson Engineering Inc. The plans call for a series of nine 16”x8” 
automatic openings (Flood Flaps) spaced 3 inches above grade around the perimeter of the 
structure.  

Goodhue County Building Permits D epartment staff have conducted a preliminary review of the 
documents and noted they are signed by a licensed engineer and appear to meet applicable 
engineering standards. A building permit will need to be reviewed and approved by the 
Department prior to construction of the facility.  

Shoreland: 
 The lot is considered a non-conforming lot of record as it does not contain the minimum 20,000 

square feet lot area required for riparian lots on unsewered General Development lakes. Staff 
consulted with Minnesota DNR Area Hydrologist Bill Huber regarding the proposal to 
reestablish a dwelling on the site. Mr. Huber conveyed that if the lot was created compliant with 
official controls in effect at the time, and sewage treatment and setback requirements of the 
shoreland controls are met, the state shoreland rules would allow the substandard lot to be 
developed. 

 The entire property is located within the shoreland overlay of the Mississippi River. Ordinarily, 
structures are required to be setback 75 feet from Ordinary High Water Level (OHWL). Per 
GCZO, where principal structures exist on adjoining lots on both sides of a proposed building 
site, structure setbacks may be altered without a variance to conform to the adjoining setbacks 
from the OHWL provided the proposed building site is not located in a shore impact zone.   

 The shore impact zone is defined as 50% of the minimum required setback. Given the location of 
the existing structures to the north and south of the parcel, no portion of the proposed structure 
may be located closer than 37.5 feet of the OHWL of the Mississippi River.  

 The structure will be required to adhere to impervious surface standards (maximum 25%), R1 
building coverage provisions (maximum coverage 20%), and shoreland height requirements 
(maximum height 25 feet).  

Septic/Well: 
 The site will require a new sub-surface sewage treatment system (SSTS) be in installed in 

addition to a well. The applicant has had a local septic designer prepare a proposed “box-mound” 
septic system to be located in the southwest corner of the parcel. The bottom of the SSTS will 
need to be elevated above the 10-year flood elevation as required by the Goodhue County SSTS 
ordinance. 

 Ben Hoyt, Goodhue County Environmental Sanitarian, offered the following comments regarding 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 4 of 4 

the applicants’ submitted SSTS plans: 

“I performed a partial review of the design and will perform a full review once a permit is 
applied for. The septic system will need to be a specialized system because the property is in the 
Mississippi floodplain. The designer has proposed a box mound style system. Box mounds have 
been successful at adequately treating sewage for properties with space requirements. The 
preliminary design is acceptable with a few adjustments and clarifications. Environmental 
Health will require a complete and satisfactory septic permit prior to approving any building 
permit for the parcel in question.” 

Township Information: 
 Wacouta Township reviewed the Applicant’s proposal and has approved a permit for the 

structure subject to county zoning approvals. The township also endorsed acknowledgment of the 
applicant’s CUP request.  
 

PAC Findings of Fact: 
1. The proposed dwelling does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in the 

immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The structure would be similar to those already 
existing in the vicinity of Wacouta Point and would be constructed in conformance with current 
building code and zoning ordinance standards.  

2. The establishment of the proposed dwelling is not anticipated to impede the normal and orderly 
development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the area. 
The structure is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance. The use as proposed appears compatible with existing adjacent land uses.  

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available or will be installed to accommodate the 
proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. No offensive odor, fumes, dust, noise, light, or vibration that would constitute a nuisance are 
anticipated from the proposal.  

 

PAC Recommendation: 
Planning Advisory Commission recommends the County Board  

 adopt the staff report into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 
 
APPROVE the request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a 
proposed dwelling above the Base Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” 
garage foundation. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall provide an as-built Elevation Certificate verifying the first-floor elevation and  
all electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and other service 
facilities meet or exceed the regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE) of 683.0 feet mean 
sea level; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 24 
(Suburban Residence District), Article 31 (Shoreland Regulations), and Article 32 (Floodplain 
District). 







Page - 1 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Court Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Darwin Fox, Richard (Dick) Nystuen, Tom Gale, Scott Safe (for Barney 
Nesseth), Richard Miller, Tom Drazkowski, Howard Stenerson and Sarah Pettit 
 
Commissioners Absent: Marc Huneke  

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak 
Zoning Assistant Abby Breyfogle 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 8:0  

2. Approval of Minutes 

2Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 8:0  

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

Commissioner Stenerson stated he has a conflict regarding his plat request. 

4. Public Hearings 

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means 
Other than Fill 
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling 
above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of Wacouta Point Plat 
located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned District.  
  

The Applicant Curt Caverly (Caverly) was present to represent the application. 

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments.  Hanni stated that a neighbor 
of the parcel contacted her in support of another home being built there.   

Caverly stated that the elevation certificate in front of the board is not correct and he has an 
updated one. 

Commissioner Pettit requested changing the township endorsement from Stanton to Wacouta 
on the first page of the report.   

Commissioner Stenerson questioned what the footprint of the original house that was there 
was.   

Caverly stated that the house has been gone since the 50’s and he is unsure what the footprint 
was. 

Discussion regarding lot size being substandard and why a variance is not needed in this 
instance because of the parcel being shoreland. 



Page - 2 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Gale asked how high the flood mark on the basement will be. 

Caverly responded about 4 feet. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

3After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

4Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Fox, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling above the Base 
Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall provide an as-built Elevation Certificate verifying the first-floor elevation 
and  all electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and 
other service facilities meet or exceed the regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE) of 
683.0 feet mean sea level; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 24 (Suburban Residence District), Article 31 (Shoreland Regulations), and Article 
32 (Floodplain District). 

Motion carried 8:0  

 

PUBLIC HEARING: “Wildwood Gardens” Preliminary and Final Plat Review   
Request submitted by Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the 
proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. Parcels 43.135.0200 
and 43.136.0380. TBD Wildwood Lane Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SE ¼ of Sect 35 and 
the SW ¼, SW ¼ of Sect 36 in Twp 113, Range 14 in Wacouta Township. A2 Zoned District. 

 

Commissioner Stenerson stepped down for conflict of interest. 

The Applicant Howard Stenerson was present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.   

Stenerson stated there is no change in the use of the property or zoning changes.  He stated the 
purpose of this is to clean up a title.  He stated he has spoken to the township about where the 
easements are exactly.  He stated that they settled on dedicating the easements to the public 



Page - 3 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

but then the township did not sign off on it and is currently waiting for the County Board to 
sign off on it first.   

Further discussion regarding the dedication of the easements.   

Commissioner Nystuen asked if this property was where there was a proposed solar panel 
before. 

Stenerson responded that it was, but this has nothing to do with the solar panel.  He stated 
that he simply wants to clean up the title work.  He continued that the property is presently 
being used for crops and going forward none of the uses are being changed.   

Commissioner Pettit asked if there would be an issue if they approved the dedication of the 
easements and then what happens if the township decides not to.  

Hanni responded that after approval it would go to the County Board for approval in the 
beginning of March and we should know something between now and then from the township 
regarding what they decide.   

Commissioner Fox clarified that this was only for the easements on Stenerson’s property and 
not the neighboring properties.   

Staff responded that is correct.   

Discussion regarding what the easements are for exactly and the roads that come through the 
area.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Al Wolf (27985 flower valley lane) stated he wanted to make sure it had nothing to do with the 
solar panels. 

5After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Drazkowski and seconded by Commissioner Safe to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

6Motion by Commissioner Fox seconded by Commissioner Safe, for the Planning 
Advisory Commission to:   

 adopt the staff report with amendments into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record;  
and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat approval of the proposed “Wildwood 
Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
 

Motion Carried 7:0 (Commissioner Stenerson abstained from voting on this issue)  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  



Page - 4 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The Applicants were present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Michael Wozniak (Wozniak) commented that in the reports staff requested a more detailed 
seed plan from the applicants and have since received the same.   

Discussion between Michael Buffalini, representative for applicant, and Commissioner 
Stenerson regarding MNdot seed mix and it being native to the area. 

Drazkowski questioned what the difference was between the potential wetland lines and the 
wetland lines.   

Applicant responded that they were not able to do a field study to make sure there were not 
any wetlands in the area.  Once the conditions outside allows for a field study, the applicant 
will confirm if there is or isn’t wetlands.  Applicant stated that if there is wetland, they will 
move the array.   

Wozniak added that staff would require the wetland question to be resolved before building 
permits would be issued but does not necessarily need to be a part of the conditions since it will 
be subject to Beau Kennedy’s review during the building permit process.  

Discussion regarding solar arrays in wetlands or potential wetlands and direction from the 
state.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked when the project was started. 

Applicant stated around November which is why a field study hasn’t been done due to the 
winter months. 

Commissioner Nystuen asked why so many small solar arrays are going up all over the county 
instead of doing one big large one? 

Commissioner Gale responded that Excel Energy changed the standards for solar arrays to 
allow only 1 megawatt. 

Discussion regarding Excel Energy only wanting to allow 1 megawatt arrays everywhere 
instead of one large array.  Commissioner Stenerson added that a lot of the reasoning behind 
the change was due to State Legislature and Court Rulings.       

Commissioner Fox commented that we are letting industry dictate how we zone. 

Commissioner Miller stated he would like to have a discussion going forward regarding prime 
farm land and if these arrays should be allowed on prime farm land.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

7After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

 

Commissioner Stenerson is concerned about the arrays and their life span and if the panels 
will still be good at the end of 30 years.   



Page - 5 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

8Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Nystuen, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 6.65 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 8 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

Applicant is present to represent the application.  



Page - 6 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Drazkowski commented that he is concerned because solar arrays in the past 
were tucked away and hid behind vegetation etc., but now they seem to be more out in the 
open and there is no notation if neighbors have been talked to yet.  He continued that the detail 
in sightlines, fencing, buffering, etc., is missing and he would like to see this for all solar 
arrays.  

Discussion regarding location of the array and how it will be further away from the main 
road than the current array.   

Further discussion regarding regulations and trends in solar arrays and their policies and 
future limits. 

Applicant responded he relied on the owner to talk to the neighbors.  Applicant is unsure if that 
happened or not as owner is at a township meeting at this time.  Applicant stated that 
typically they would go out and speak to the neighbors but owner said he would take care of 
that since the neighbors were not upset with the first array that is already built and running.   

Wozniak stated that the county does not require the applicant to speak to the neighbors, it is 
encouraged but not required. 

Applicant stated if the neighbor would request vegetative screening they would be willing to 
accommodate that.   

Discussion regarding seed that would slow water flow so that there isn’t fast run off creating 
ditches of water and soil erosion.   

Applicant stated they will use silt fences and build everything to compaction as they go. 

Commissioner Stenerson questioned if the project was large enough to require an erosion 
control plan. 

Wozniak responded in the packet staff receives from the applicant’s erosion is thoroughly 
addressed. He continued that typically someone from the zoning staff inspects the site to make 
sure there are no erosion concerns. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Mark Chamberlain of Pine Island stated his concern isn’t the use of the land but he has a dairy 
farm currently and it is becoming boxed in with the amount of solar panels in his location.  
Since all of the solar panels have been installed his cows have become more and more agitated 
as the sun is up.  He is wondering if there any stray voltage coming off of the panels.  Mark 
continued that had a study done on his farm on stray voltage and didn’t see anything coming 
from power lines or anywhere the first test he had done, but one from the next year he saw 
some current coming into the farm site.   

Commissioner Nystruen asked if it was Excel Energy who did the study or if it was a private 
firm.   

Mark stated it was with a private firm. 

Commissioner Miller echoed Mark’s concern regarding stray voltage.   

Applicant stated that when they have had stray voltage tests done before and their arrays 
have never had any stray voltage from them.  He continued that they would be willing to do a 
stray voltage test for this neighbor. 



Page - 7 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Stenerson asked Mark if he had any discussions with Excel Energy about this 
issue.   

Mark responded no.   

9After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that these lines would be going up and down in voltage during 
the day and it is tied into Excel’s capacity limits. 

Commissioner Drazkowski asked if there is a screening plan or not. 

Hanni responded screening is typically only needed if the array is too close to the neighbors or 
if some neighbor came in and asked for it.  

Commissioner Fox commented that this particular array due to location didn’t have much 
concern for screening.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked what the process would be for a stray voltage study and what 
the benefit would be. 

Applicant stated they could contact the neighbors and give them the information.  He stated 
they use a 3rd party that would test and they would test their system as well as Excel’s system 
and/or high power line to see if there is any stray voltage.   

Commissioner Stenerson would like to add a condition going forward regarding the stray 
voltage study. 

Staff suggested conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A storm water management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 8 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

10Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Add condition #12; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 
acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to completion of 
any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The 
applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 



Page - 9 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

12. Applicants shall conduct a stray voltage study to be completed before and after building 
the solar array.  The applicant shall share the results with neighboring landowners and Land 
Use Management Staff.   

Commissioner Nystuen clarified that the study would be done before and after the array 
was built. 

Commissioner Pettit questioned what they would do if they found stray voltage?  

Commissioner Gale added that it would establish if there’s a problem and prove they aren’t 
adding to the problem.   

Commissioner Stenerson amended his motion to include that the results of the stray 
voltage testing be done before and after building the array and the results shall be shared 
with all neighbors.  Commissioner Miller seconded. 

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.4 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 
55992. Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 
Zoned District. 
  
Applicant is present to represent the application.  

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Fox commented that they got this one tucked in further than they originally had 
planned and he opined that this was a good way to handle solar arrays.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked about stray voltage here and wondered if this was the same 
powerline as the previous CUP. 

Staff responded that there’s a large distance between the two. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

11After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Pettit commented she has concerns regarding stray voltage issues as well as 
solar arrays taking up prime farm land.  She continued that this solar array is a good fit for 
the area.  

Commissioner Nystruen asked staff about the conditions being different between the last array 
and this one.  



Page - 10 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Wozniak responded that there are no wetland issues on this array so that condition was not 
needed.   

12Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Gale, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 
10.42 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

6. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

7. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

10. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date.  

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 
the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

The Applicant was present to represent the application. 



Page - 11 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Wozniak read comments from Beau Kennedy regarding wetland issues. 

 “No official wetland determination has been made for this portion of the solar project. 
However, I do not forsee any wetlands present within the project area.  Also, the first facility 
constructed in 2018 and witnessed some considerable erosion problems on north facing steep 
slopes.  Developer should take steps to assure no downstream sedimentation occurs during 
and after construction.” 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

13After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Fox commented on placement of this makes it so you barely see it. 

14Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5.63 
acres. 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 12 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 8:0  

5. Other discussion 
 
Discussion regarding township and county road condition to be added to the CUP applications 
and approval. 
 
Commissioner Pettit stated she would like to have a discussion going forward how to handle 
the solar arrays, stray voltage, and taking farm land out of commission.   
 
Discussion of what to include in the April 15th meeting regarding solar arrays: 
 What we’ve approved, where they are, what’s been built from what’s been approved. 
 How many are in Prime Farmland 
 Existing permits and their vicinity to feedlots 
 Decommissioning 
 Life span expansion 
  
Will set up a time for the solar panel April 15th meeting/discussion time at March meeting. 
 
15Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Nystuen, second by Commissioner Fox, to 
adjourn the Planning Advisory Commission meeting at 8:59 PM.  
Motion carried 8:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Abby Breyfogle; Recording Secretary  

                                                 
1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request to elevate a proposed dwelling above the 
Base Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 

Motion carried 8:0 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
6 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request the request for Preliminary and Final Plat 
approval of the proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
  Motion carried 8:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  



Page - 13 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                             
Motion carried 8:0 

8 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 6.65 acres. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 
9 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
10 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 acres.  
 Motion carried 8:0 
11 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
12 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy 
System (SES) occupying approximately 10.42 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
13 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
14 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request from for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System 
(SES) occupying approximately 5.63 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
15 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 8:0 

























54

M
R 

70
80

7080.2270 Floodplain Areas. 
Subpart 1. General. ISTS must be designed under this part if the 

system is proposed to be located in a fl oodplain. A system located in a 
fl oodplain must meet or exceed the following requirements: 

A. employ fl ow values in parts 7080.1850 to 7080.1885; 
B. meet or exceed applicable technical requirements of parts 

7080.1900 to 7080.2030, 7080.2050, and 7080.2100, except as 
modifi ed in this part; 

C. provide fl ow measurement if a pump is to be employed; 
D. meet or exceed the requirements of parts 7080.2210 to 

7080.2230; 
E. meet or exceed requirements of part 7080.2150, subparts 2 and 

3, except as modifi ed in this subpart; and 
F. meet the requirements of subparts 2 to 11. 
Subp. 2. State and local requirements. The allowed use of 

systems in fl oodplains must be according to state and local fl oodplain 
requirements. 

Subp. 3. Location of system. An ISTS must not be located in a 
fl oodway and, whenever possible, placement within any part of the 
fl oodplain should be avoided. If no alternative exists, a system is 
allowed to be placed within the fl ood fringe if the requirements in 
subparts 4 to 11 are met. 

Subp. 4. Openings. There must be no inspection pipe or other 
installed opening from the distribution media to the soil surface. 

Subp. 5. Highest ground. An ISTS must be located on the highest 
feasible area of the lot and must have location preference over all other 
improvements except the water supply well. If the ten-year fl ood data 
are available, the bottom of the distribution media must be at least as 
high as the elevation of the ten-year fl ood. 

Subp. 6. Pump. If a pump is used to distribute effl  uent to the soil 
treatment and dispersal system, provisions shall be made to prevent 
the pump from operating when inundated with fl oodwaters. 

Subp. 7. Raising elevation. When it is necessary to raise the 
elevation of the soil treatment system to meet the vertical separation 
distance requirements, a mound system as specifi ed in part 7080.2220 
is allowed to be used with the following additional requirements: 

A. the elevation of the bottom of the mound bed absorption 
area must be at least one-half foot above the ten-year fl ood 
elevation if ten-year fl ood data are available; 

B. inspection pipes must not be installed unless the top of the 
mound is above the 100-year fl ood elevation; and 

7080.2270 FLOODPLAIN AREAS



55

M
R 7080

C. the placement of clean sand and other fi ll must be done 
according to any community-adopted fl oodplain management 
ordinance. 

Subp. 8. Inundation of top. When the top of a sewage tank is 
inundated, the dwelling must cease discharging sewage into it. 

Subp. 9. Backfl ow. Backfl ow prevention of liquid into the building 
when the system is inundated must be provided. If a holding tank 
is used, the system must be designed to permit rapid diversion of 
sewage into the holding tank when the system is inundated. 

Subp. 10. Holding tank. If a holding tank is used to serve a 
dwelling, the holding tank’s liquid capacity must equal 100 gallons 
times the number of bedrooms times the number of days between the 
ten-year stage on the rising limb of the 100-year fl ood hydro-graph 
and the ten-year stage on the falling limb of the hydrograph, or 1,000 
gallons, whichever is greater. The holding tank must be accessible for 
removal of tank contents under fl ooded conditions. 

Subp. 11. Water level above top. Whenever the water level has 
risen above the top of a sewage tank, the tank must be pumped to 
remove all solids and liquids after the fl ood has receded and before 
use of the system is resumed. 

7080.2280 Privies. 
A. To qualify as a privy, the system must: 

(1) meet or exceed the requirements of part 7080.2150, 
subpart 2; 

(2) have soil beneath the bottom of the pit that meets or 
exceeds the requirements of part 7080.2150, subpart 3, 
item C, employ a watertight tank meeting applicable 
requirements of parts 7080.1900 to 7080.2030, or employ a 
toilet treatment device; and 

(3) meet the requirements of items B to E. 
B. Pits or vaults must have suffi cient capacity for the dwelling 

they serve, but must have at least 25 cubic feet of capacity. 
C. The sides of the pit must be curbed to prevent cave-in. 
D. The privy must be easily maintained and insect proof. The 

door and seat must be self-closing. All exterior openings, 
including vent openings, shall be screened. 

E. Privies must be adequately vented. 

7080.2280 PRIVIES 









 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 
Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 
Building | Planning | Zoning  
Telephone: 651.385.3104 
Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 
Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  Planning Commission 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: February 11, 2019 
Report date:  February 1, 2019 
 
PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of the NW 
¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) 
Address of zoning request: TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027 
Parcel(s): 26.032.0400 
Abbreviated Legal: Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township 
Township Information: Belvidere Township completed a township zoning application approving the 
applicant’s request on 1/8/19.   
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary (excerpt of submitted materials; full submittal available 
from  LUM Department upon request) 
Site Map(s) 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicant has submitted a CUP request to construct and operate a one (1) Megawatt (MW) 
photovoltaic (PV) utility-scale solar garden on approximately 6.65 acres of leased land located in 
Belvidere Township that is currently owned by Jonathan and Lora Luhman. The project would be 
developed in conjunction with the State of Minnesota Solar Garden program and Xcel Energy's Solar 
Rewards Community Program. The program allows developers to design, permit, own, and operate 
solar energy systems and sell the generated power directly to consumers. Upon completion, the Solar 
Garden would connect to Xcel Energy’s distribution grid and generate up to 1 MW of energy annually 
over the next 25 years.   

Per Goodhue County regulations, Solar Energy Systems (SES) that are the primary use of the land 
and are designed to primarily provide energy to off-site users or export to the wholesale market may 
be conditionally permitted as a “Utility-Scale SES” within the County’s A1 zoned districts.    

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 2 of 4 

and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 
 
Project Summary:  
Property Information: 
 The approximately 6.65-acre site to be leased by the applicant is currently used for row-crop 

agriculture (corn and soybeans) by the owner. 

The 159-acre Luhman property includes a dwelling, a registered feedlot, tilled cropland, and 
pasture areas. 

Adjacent land uses include agriculture and low-density residential. 

The nearest residence is located approximately 1500 feet northwest of the proposed facility 
(Marlyn Hinrichs). The city of Bellechester is located approximately one half-mile southeast of 
the project area.  

 The property is bordered on all sides by A1 (Agriculture Protection) Zoned Districts. 

Solar Array: 
 The solar array is proposed to include 4046 solar modules (panels) installed in 9 rows spaced 10-

15 feet apart.   

Single-axis tracker racks tilted at 30 degrees will hold up solar panels, reaching a typical height of 
10 feet above grade.  

The racking will be installed with piles that are anchored into the ground to an appropriate depth 
based on detailed structural and geotechnical analysis. 

The solar array will interconnect to the power grid via a pad-mounted transformer at the north 
edge of the project area, facilitating connection to an existing Xcel Energy circuit. 

 A new driveway/access road will be constructed from 390th ST to access the leased project area. 

A recorded ingress/egress easement is not required for the property given the site is to be leased 
and all land to be crossed to access the site will remain under common ownership. 

A separate fire number will be required for the site. 

 The 12-foot wide access drive would be composed of crushed aggregate to facilitate emergency 
vehicle access in inclement weather conditions. Emergency vehicle access appears adequate to 
service the facility. 

 Once constructed, traffic to the site would be limited to four visits per year (quarterly) by two 
maintenance personnel to perform routine maintenance, in addition to any unplanned 
maintenance.  During the first few years of operation two vegetation maintenance personnel will 
visit the site a handful of times per year and then an anticipated four times per year for the 
duration of the project.  

 The solar garden is sited to comply with all GCZO setback requirements for Solar Energy 
Systems. 

Landscaping/Drainage: 
 The site slopes generally from north to south with stormwater runoff draining towards the lower 

areas in the southeast corner of the parcel. 

Apart from the gravel access road and meter pad, the entire area within the fenced project 
boundary will be restored to a low-maintenance seed mix, including the area below the solar 
panels. A “pollinator friendly” seed mix designed to grow no more than 2 feet tall will be selected 
in accordance with Minnesota Department of Transportation native seed mix design guidelines. 

 Beau Kennedy with the Goodhue SWCD reviewed the application materials and offered the 
following comments:  

No official wetland determination has been made for this project area. However, I do not 
foresee any wetland impacts associated with the project site or the access road. The application 
references a MNDOT manual for selecting a proper mix on these sites, but I can’t find what the 
applicant has actually picked for a temporary and/or permanent seed mix for the facility. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 3 of 4 

Listing a specific seed mix should be included when/if a CUP is approved to avoid any 
confusion down the road with contractors and subcontractors. 

 A level-1 Wetland Delineation Report completed by Area M Consulting on behalf of the Applicant 
indicated no wetlands were present in the project area.  

 The application notes that stormwater management measures will be determined by EVS, a 
licensed civil engineering firm. Measures will include an analysis of the existing topography and 
the use of control logs and silt fences where necessary.  

An erosion control/stormwater management plan is customarily submitted for administrative 
review at the time of building permit application. 

 The Applicant stated they conducted a site visit and visual impact analysis and stated that there 
would be a minimal visual impact on nearby properties. There is no vegetative screening existing 
at the site or proposed. There is some topographic relief in the area the will limit some views of 
the project area, however much of it will be visible. The Planning Commission should consider 
whether any screening of the proposed SES is warranted.  

 A 6-foot tall chain-link fence with a 1-foot barbed wire top will be constructed around the 
perimeter of the project area for security.   

 Ample room exists on the property to fulfill GCZO off-street parking requirements.  

 Construction is expected to last 9 months from April to December 2019. Construction crews 
would operate from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM daily.  

 A Cultural Resource Literature Review completed by Area M Consulting on behalf of the 
Applicant indicated no cultural resources were identified in the project area.  

Maintenance/Decommissioning: 
 The project is subject to issuance of a Building Permit and must be constructed according to 

applicable building code requirements. The project will be inspected by County Building 
Inspections Staff and the State Electrical Inspector.  In addition, Planning and Zoning Staff will 
inspect the project upon completion to ensure conformance with applicable zoning requirements. 

 MN 121819 LLC has a long-term maintenance plan to ensure safety, reliable operation, and 
production of the system. Monitoring and metering equipment installed on site will alert the 
maintenance team in real-time of a system performance issue.  

 The Applicant has prepared a Decommissioning Agreement between MN 121819 LLC and 
Jonathan and Lora Luhman that includes removal of all equipment to a depth of 2-3 feet, 
timelines for removal, and the establishment of a financial security. The Applicant has estimated 
total costs for decommissioning to be $87,767 and has estimated the salvage value of reclaimed 
materials to be $86,126. 

Per GCZO Article 19, the applicant may be required to provide a financial surety at up to 125% of 
the estimated decommissioning cost. The county has not typically exercised the right to financial 
assurance requirements for similar solar installations.  The Planning Advisory Commission and 
County Board will need to decide if the County will require financial assurance to cover 
anticipated decommissioning costs. 
 

Draft Findings of Fact: 
The following staff findings shall be amended to reflect concerns conveyed during the PAC meeting 
and public hearing. 
 

1. The proposed Solar Garden does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in 
the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The use appears harmonious with the established uses 
in the vicinity. 

2. The establishment of the proposed Solar Garden is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 
www.co.goodhue.mn.us 

Page 4 of 4 

Ordinance and it does not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicants’ 
lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to 
neighboring properties will result. 

Staff recommendation is based on the review of the submitted application and project area prior to 
the public hearing. 
 
Staff Recommendation: 
LUM Staff recommends the Planning Advisory Commission  

• adopt the staff report into the record;  
• adopt the findings of fact;  
• accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 

 

Recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP submitted 
by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a Utility-Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 6.65 acres. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to ownership 
transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the Goodhue 
SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to completion of any site 
grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for administrative 
review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 19 
Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The applicant 
shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that date. 

 







Page - 1 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Court Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Darwin Fox, Richard (Dick) Nystuen, Tom Gale, Scott Safe (for Barney 
Nesseth), Richard Miller, Tom Drazkowski, Howard Stenerson and Sarah Pettit 
 
Commissioners Absent: Marc Huneke  

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak 
Zoning Assistant Abby Breyfogle 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 8:0  

2. Approval of Minutes 

2Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 8:0  

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

Commissioner Stenerson stated he has a conflict regarding his plat request. 

4. Public Hearings 

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means 
Other than Fill 
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling 
above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of Wacouta Point Plat 
located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned District.  
  

The Applicant Curt Caverly (Caverly) was present to represent the application. 

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments.  Hanni stated that a neighbor 
of the parcel contacted her in support of another home being built there.   

Caverly stated that the elevation certificate in front of the board is not correct and he has an 
updated one. 

Commissioner Pettit requested changing the township endorsement from Stanton to Wacouta 
on the first page of the report.   

Commissioner Stenerson questioned what the footprint of the original house that was there 
was.   

Caverly stated that the house has been gone since the 50’s and he is unsure what the footprint 
was. 

Discussion regarding lot size being substandard and why a variance is not needed in this 
instance because of the parcel being shoreland. 



Page - 2 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Gale asked how high the flood mark on the basement will be. 

Caverly responded about 4 feet. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

3After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

4Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Fox, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling above the Base 
Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall provide an as-built Elevation Certificate verifying the first-floor elevation 
and  all electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and 
other service facilities meet or exceed the regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE) of 
683.0 feet mean sea level; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 24 (Suburban Residence District), Article 31 (Shoreland Regulations), and Article 
32 (Floodplain District). 

Motion carried 8:0  

 

PUBLIC HEARING: “Wildwood Gardens” Preliminary and Final Plat Review   
Request submitted by Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the 
proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. Parcels 43.135.0200 
and 43.136.0380. TBD Wildwood Lane Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SE ¼ of Sect 35 and 
the SW ¼, SW ¼ of Sect 36 in Twp 113, Range 14 in Wacouta Township. A2 Zoned District. 

 

Commissioner Stenerson stepped down for conflict of interest. 

The Applicant Howard Stenerson was present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.   

Stenerson stated there is no change in the use of the property or zoning changes.  He stated the 
purpose of this is to clean up a title.  He stated he has spoken to the township about where the 
easements are exactly.  He stated that they settled on dedicating the easements to the public 



Page - 3 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

but then the township did not sign off on it and is currently waiting for the County Board to 
sign off on it first.   

Further discussion regarding the dedication of the easements.   

Commissioner Nystuen asked if this property was where there was a proposed solar panel 
before. 

Stenerson responded that it was, but this has nothing to do with the solar panel.  He stated 
that he simply wants to clean up the title work.  He continued that the property is presently 
being used for crops and going forward none of the uses are being changed.   

Commissioner Pettit asked if there would be an issue if they approved the dedication of the 
easements and then what happens if the township decides not to.  

Hanni responded that after approval it would go to the County Board for approval in the 
beginning of March and we should know something between now and then from the township 
regarding what they decide.   

Commissioner Fox clarified that this was only for the easements on Stenerson’s property and 
not the neighboring properties.   

Staff responded that is correct.   

Discussion regarding what the easements are for exactly and the roads that come through the 
area.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Al Wolf (27985 flower valley lane) stated he wanted to make sure it had nothing to do with the 
solar panels. 

5After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Drazkowski and seconded by Commissioner Safe to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

6Motion by Commissioner Fox seconded by Commissioner Safe, for the Planning 
Advisory Commission to:   

 adopt the staff report with amendments into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record;  
and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat approval of the proposed “Wildwood 
Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
 

Motion Carried 7:0 (Commissioner Stenerson abstained from voting on this issue)  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  



Page - 4 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The Applicants were present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Michael Wozniak (Wozniak) commented that in the reports staff requested a more detailed 
seed plan from the applicants and have since received the same.   

Discussion between Michael Buffalini, representative for applicant, and Commissioner 
Stenerson regarding MNdot seed mix and it being native to the area. 

Drazkowski questioned what the difference was between the potential wetland lines and the 
wetland lines.   

Applicant responded that they were not able to do a field study to make sure there were not 
any wetlands in the area.  Once the conditions outside allows for a field study, the applicant 
will confirm if there is or isn’t wetlands.  Applicant stated that if there is wetland, they will 
move the array.   

Wozniak added that staff would require the wetland question to be resolved before building 
permits would be issued but does not necessarily need to be a part of the conditions since it will 
be subject to Beau Kennedy’s review during the building permit process.  

Discussion regarding solar arrays in wetlands or potential wetlands and direction from the 
state.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked when the project was started. 

Applicant stated around November which is why a field study hasn’t been done due to the 
winter months. 

Commissioner Nystuen asked why so many small solar arrays are going up all over the county 
instead of doing one big large one? 

Commissioner Gale responded that Excel Energy changed the standards for solar arrays to 
allow only 1 megawatt. 

Discussion regarding Excel Energy only wanting to allow 1 megawatt arrays everywhere 
instead of one large array.  Commissioner Stenerson added that a lot of the reasoning behind 
the change was due to State Legislature and Court Rulings.       

Commissioner Fox commented that we are letting industry dictate how we zone. 

Commissioner Miller stated he would like to have a discussion going forward regarding prime 
farm land and if these arrays should be allowed on prime farm land.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

7After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

 

Commissioner Stenerson is concerned about the arrays and their life span and if the panels 
will still be good at the end of 30 years.   



Page - 5 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

8Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Nystuen, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 6.65 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 8 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

Applicant is present to represent the application.  



Page - 6 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Drazkowski commented that he is concerned because solar arrays in the past 
were tucked away and hid behind vegetation etc., but now they seem to be more out in the 
open and there is no notation if neighbors have been talked to yet.  He continued that the detail 
in sightlines, fencing, buffering, etc., is missing and he would like to see this for all solar 
arrays.  

Discussion regarding location of the array and how it will be further away from the main 
road than the current array.   

Further discussion regarding regulations and trends in solar arrays and their policies and 
future limits. 

Applicant responded he relied on the owner to talk to the neighbors.  Applicant is unsure if that 
happened or not as owner is at a township meeting at this time.  Applicant stated that 
typically they would go out and speak to the neighbors but owner said he would take care of 
that since the neighbors were not upset with the first array that is already built and running.   

Wozniak stated that the county does not require the applicant to speak to the neighbors, it is 
encouraged but not required. 

Applicant stated if the neighbor would request vegetative screening they would be willing to 
accommodate that.   

Discussion regarding seed that would slow water flow so that there isn’t fast run off creating 
ditches of water and soil erosion.   

Applicant stated they will use silt fences and build everything to compaction as they go. 

Commissioner Stenerson questioned if the project was large enough to require an erosion 
control plan. 

Wozniak responded in the packet staff receives from the applicant’s erosion is thoroughly 
addressed. He continued that typically someone from the zoning staff inspects the site to make 
sure there are no erosion concerns. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Mark Chamberlain of Pine Island stated his concern isn’t the use of the land but he has a dairy 
farm currently and it is becoming boxed in with the amount of solar panels in his location.  
Since all of the solar panels have been installed his cows have become more and more agitated 
as the sun is up.  He is wondering if there any stray voltage coming off of the panels.  Mark 
continued that had a study done on his farm on stray voltage and didn’t see anything coming 
from power lines or anywhere the first test he had done, but one from the next year he saw 
some current coming into the farm site.   

Commissioner Nystruen asked if it was Excel Energy who did the study or if it was a private 
firm.   

Mark stated it was with a private firm. 

Commissioner Miller echoed Mark’s concern regarding stray voltage.   

Applicant stated that when they have had stray voltage tests done before and their arrays 
have never had any stray voltage from them.  He continued that they would be willing to do a 
stray voltage test for this neighbor. 



Page - 7 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Stenerson asked Mark if he had any discussions with Excel Energy about this 
issue.   

Mark responded no.   

9After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that these lines would be going up and down in voltage during 
the day and it is tied into Excel’s capacity limits. 

Commissioner Drazkowski asked if there is a screening plan or not. 

Hanni responded screening is typically only needed if the array is too close to the neighbors or 
if some neighbor came in and asked for it.  

Commissioner Fox commented that this particular array due to location didn’t have much 
concern for screening.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked what the process would be for a stray voltage study and what 
the benefit would be. 

Applicant stated they could contact the neighbors and give them the information.  He stated 
they use a 3rd party that would test and they would test their system as well as Excel’s system 
and/or high power line to see if there is any stray voltage.   

Commissioner Stenerson would like to add a condition going forward regarding the stray 
voltage study. 

Staff suggested conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A storm water management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 8 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

10Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Add condition #12; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 
acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to completion of 
any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The 
applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 



Page - 9 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

12. Applicants shall conduct a stray voltage study to be completed before and after building 
the solar array.  The applicant shall share the results with neighboring landowners and Land 
Use Management Staff.   

Commissioner Nystuen clarified that the study would be done before and after the array 
was built. 

Commissioner Pettit questioned what they would do if they found stray voltage?  

Commissioner Gale added that it would establish if there’s a problem and prove they aren’t 
adding to the problem.   

Commissioner Stenerson amended his motion to include that the results of the stray 
voltage testing be done before and after building the array and the results shall be shared 
with all neighbors.  Commissioner Miller seconded. 

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.4 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 
55992. Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 
Zoned District. 
  
Applicant is present to represent the application.  

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Fox commented that they got this one tucked in further than they originally had 
planned and he opined that this was a good way to handle solar arrays.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked about stray voltage here and wondered if this was the same 
powerline as the previous CUP. 

Staff responded that there’s a large distance between the two. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

11After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Pettit commented she has concerns regarding stray voltage issues as well as 
solar arrays taking up prime farm land.  She continued that this solar array is a good fit for 
the area.  

Commissioner Nystruen asked staff about the conditions being different between the last array 
and this one.  



Page - 10 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Wozniak responded that there are no wetland issues on this array so that condition was not 
needed.   

12Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Gale, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 
10.42 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

6. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

7. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

10. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date.  

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 
the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

The Applicant was present to represent the application. 



Page - 11 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Wozniak read comments from Beau Kennedy regarding wetland issues. 

 “No official wetland determination has been made for this portion of the solar project. 
However, I do not forsee any wetlands present within the project area.  Also, the first facility 
constructed in 2018 and witnessed some considerable erosion problems on north facing steep 
slopes.  Developer should take steps to assure no downstream sedimentation occurs during 
and after construction.” 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

13After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Fox commented on placement of this makes it so you barely see it. 

14Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5.63 
acres. 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 12 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 8:0  

5. Other discussion 
 
Discussion regarding township and county road condition to be added to the CUP applications 
and approval. 
 
Commissioner Pettit stated she would like to have a discussion going forward how to handle 
the solar arrays, stray voltage, and taking farm land out of commission.   
 
Discussion of what to include in the April 15th meeting regarding solar arrays: 
 What we’ve approved, where they are, what’s been built from what’s been approved. 
 How many are in Prime Farmland 
 Existing permits and their vicinity to feedlots 
 Decommissioning 
 Life span expansion 
  
Will set up a time for the solar panel April 15th meeting/discussion time at March meeting. 
 
15Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Nystuen, second by Commissioner Fox, to 
adjourn the Planning Advisory Commission meeting at 8:59 PM.  
Motion carried 8:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Abby Breyfogle; Recording Secretary  

                                                 
1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request to elevate a proposed dwelling above the 
Base Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 

Motion carried 8:0 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
6 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request the request for Preliminary and Final Plat 
approval of the proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
  Motion carried 8:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  



Page - 13 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                             
Motion carried 8:0 

8 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 6.65 acres. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 
9 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
10 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 acres.  
 Motion carried 8:0 
11 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
12 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy 
System (SES) occupying approximately 10.42 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
13 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
14 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request from for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System 
(SES) occupying approximately 5.63 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
15 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 8:0 













































 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 1 of 5 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 

Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 

Building | Planning | Zoning  

Telephone: 651.385.3104 

Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 

Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  County Board 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 
Report date:  February 12, 2019 
 
CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) 
for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 8 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the NW 
¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) 
Address of zoning request: TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992 
Parcel(s): 39.007.0301 
Abbreviated Legal: Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township 
Township Information: Pine Island Township acknowledged the CUP request and the Township 
Board of Supervisor voted to approve the project (2 for/1 against) on 1/3/2019.   
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
February 11, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicant has submitted a CUP request to construct and operate a one (1) Megawatt (MW) 
photovoltaic (PV) utility-scale solar garden on up to 8 acres of leased land located in Pine Island 
Township that is currently owned by Andrew Huneke and Kim Huneke. The project would be 
developed in conjunction with the State of Minnesota Solar Garden program and Xcel Energy's Solar 
Rewards Community Program. The program allows developers to design, permit, own, and operate 
solar energy systems and sell the generated power directly to consumers. Upon completion, the “USS 
Solar Greenhouse LLC” Solar Garden would connect to Xcel Energy’s distribution grid and generate 
up to 1 MW of energy annually over the next 25 years.   

Per Goodhue County regulations, Solar Energy Systems (SES) that are the primary use of the land 
and are designed to primarily provide energy to off-site users or export to the wholesale market may 
be conditionally permitted as a “Utility-Scale SES” within the County’s A1 zoned districts.    

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 2 of 5 

and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

 
Project Summary:  
Property Information: 
 The approximately 8-acre site to be leased by the applicant is currently used for row-crop 

agriculture (corn and soybeans) by the owner. 

Current land use of the 152-acre Huneke property includes another one (1) Megawatt (MW) 
photovoltaic (PV utility scale solar garden situated immediately west of the proposed site on 
approximately 8 acres.  A CUP for this solar project that was developed by Innovative Power 
Systems was approved by the County Board in February, 2017 and has since been constructed 
(see included site maps).  The balance of the property is comprised of tilled cropland and grass 
drainage swales. 

Adjacent land uses include agriculture and low-density residential. 

The nearest residences are located between 1,150 and 1,250 feet from the proposed facility.  
These included the Dana Hoffbeck (Parcel #390061700) property to the north and the Jeffrey M 
Post (Parcel #390070300) and John R Lexvold (Parcel 400120100) properties located southwest 
of the proposed site. 

 Section 7 is located within the County’s A1 (Agriculture Protection) Zone. Section 6, Pine Island 
Township located immediately north of the proposed project area is located within the County’s 
A-3 (Urban Fringe) Zone.  The other Sections abutting Section 7, are located within the A-1 
(Agriculture Protection Zone). 

 The major equipment components of the project are solar panels, inverters, and racking. 

Solar Array: 
 The solar array is proposed to include 4046 solar panels.  The panels are mounted on a steel and 

aluminum racking structure positioned a fixed 30 degree tilt, and generally averages ten (10) feet 
above grade and will not exceed a maximum height of twenty (20) feet above grade. 

 The racking system is installed in the ground with I-beams that are driven directly into the 
ground at a depth usually between six (6) feet and ten (10) feet depending on soil conditions. 

 The only proposed grading that will occur is for the roads and concrete equipment pads. 

 The panels will be arranged into rows.  Each row of solar panels will connect to an inverter.  The 
inverters will be connected by trenched underground conduit that is housed inside of PVC 
housing which will be installed two (2) feet below the surface.  

 The inverters transform the direct current (DC) power generated by the photovoltaic system to 
alternating current (AC) power, which is then connected to the existing Xcel Energy three phase 
power distribution line at the point of common coupling (PCC). 

 MN 121819 would like to begin construction in April 2019 and complete the project before 
December 2019.  The construction process takes approximately nine months. 

 Construction, operation and maintenance crews will access the site by a proposed twelve (12) foot 
wide gravel road that has a forty (40) foot entrance off 180th Avenue on the west side of the 
property. 

 A recorded ingress/egress easement is not required for the property given the site is to be leased 
and all land to be crossed to access the site will remain under common ownership. 

A separate fire number will be required for the site. 

 Adequate emergency vehicle access is available to service the location. 

The access route would be composed of crushed aggregate to facilitate emergency vehicle access 
in inclement weather conditions. 

 The solar garden is sited to comply with all GCZO setback requirements for solar energy systems. 

Landscaping/Drainage: 
 Storm water management measures will be determined by EVS, a licensed civil engineering firm.  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 3 of 5 

They are a Minnesota based company with an enormous amount of experience designing solar 
arrays.  Since no substantial grading will be required, the use of erosion control logs and silt 
fences where necessary, and establishment of a germinated pollinator friendly base underneath 
the project site before construction begins to prevent erosion.  The project will be subject to 
National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)/Storm water discharge permit 
requirements as administered by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.  Land Use 
Management Department Staff will confirm that, these requirement have been met by the 
applicant during the Building Permit review.    

 The applicant has included a Level 1 Wetland Delineation Report for the Huneke 1 Project, 
prepared by Area M Consulting (Area M).  It is the professional opinion of Area M that the Study 
Area contains one feature (Wetland 1, located within Area 1) that satisfies the criteria to be a 
wetland pursuant to the Army Corps of Engineers’ 1987 Manual with subsequent clarification 
memoranda and pursuant to confirmation by the USACE (Appendix A).  They note that only 
state, federal, or local agencies have final authority over wetland extent and jurisdictional status.   

Beau Kennedy of the Goodhue SWCD (Wetlands Coordinator) has indicated that “no official 
wetland determination has been made for this project area.   There are 2 grassed waterways that 
may show wetland features from an aerial slide review but are likely non-wetland.  There are 
known wetland features further to the east of this site but not within the project area.  The 
wetland report suggests a site visit to do further investigation of the waterway for wetlands.  I 
support that.” 

The Applicant will need to communicate with Beau Kennedy, Goodhue SWCD, Wetlands 
Coordinator to ensure compliance with the Wetlands Conservation Act and applicable rules prior 
to building permit issuance. 

 Aside from the gravel access road and meter pad, the entire area within the fenced 
project boundary will be restored to a low-maintenance seed mix, including the area 
below the solar panels.  The Applicant has been asked to specify the seed mix prior to 
County approval of the CUP.  Mike Bufulini with Gordian Energy, a representative of the 
Applicant has indicated that information regarding the specific seed mix to be used will 
be provided prior to the Planning Advisory Commission meeting on February 11. 

 The solar array will be contained within an area protected by a six-foot chain link fence with one 
foot of barbed wire above it.  

 Ample room exists on the property to fulfill GCZO off-street parking requirements.  

Maintenance/Decommissioning: 

 The project is subject to issuance of a Building Permit and must be constructed according to 
applicable building code requirements.  The project will be inspected by County Building 
Inspections Staff and the State Electrical Inspector.  In addition, Planning and Zoning Staff will 
inspect the project upon completion to ensure conformance with applicable zoning requirements. 

 MN121819, LLC, has indicated that the solar garden site will operate and be monitored 24 hours 
a day, 365 days a year after construction has been completed.  A description of proposed 
Operations and Emergency Response plans and contact personnel has been included in Exhibit J.  

 The Applicant has contractual obligations to the landowner regarding decommissioning arising 
out of Section 4.4 of the “LAND LEASE AND SOLAR EASEMENT” between the property owners 
(Andrew J. Huneke and Kim Y. Huneke) and MN121819 LLC.  These obligations include a 
provision for “Security for Removal”. Per GCZO Article 19, the applicant may be required to 
provide a financial surety at up to 125% of the estimated decommissioning cost. The county has 
not typically exercised the right to financial assurance requirements for similar solar 
installations.  The Planning Advisory Commission and County Board will need to decide if the 
County will require financial assurance to cover anticipated decommissioning costs. 

 The Applicant has prepared a Decommissioning Agreement between MN 121819 LLC and 
Andrew Huneke and Kim Huneke that includes removal of all equipment to a depth of 2-3 feet, 
timelines for removal, and the establishment of a financial security. The Applicant has estimated 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 4 of 5 

total costs for decommissioning to be $87,767 and has estimated the salvage value of reclaimed 
materials to be $86,126. 

 Per GCZO Article 19, the applicant may be required to provide a financial surety at up to 125% of 
the estimated decommissioning cost. The county has not typically exercised the right to financial 
assurance requirements for similar solar installations.  The Planning Advisory Commission and 
County Board will need to decide if the County will require financial assurance to cover 
anticipated decommissioning costs. 

  

PAC Findings of Fact: 
1. The proposed Solar Garden does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in 

the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The use appears harmonious with the established uses 
in the vicinity. There is an existing Solar Garden existing directly south of the subject site that has 
been functioning without record of complaint from neighboring residences. 

2. The establishment of the proposed Solar Garden is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance and it does not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicants’ 
lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to 
neighboring properties will result. 

 
PAC Recommendation: 
Planning Advisory Commission recommends the County Board  

 adopt the staff report into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 
 

APPROVE the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim 
Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 8 acres. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to ownership 
transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the Goodhue 
SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to completion of any site 
grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for administrative 
review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 5 of 5 

determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 19 
Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The applicant 
shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that date. 

12. Applicants shall conduct a stray voltage study to be completed before and after building the 
solar array.  The applicant shall share the results with neighboring landowners and Land Use 
Management Staff.   

 

 



Page - 1 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Court Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Darwin Fox, Richard (Dick) Nystuen, Tom Gale, Scott Safe (for Barney 
Nesseth), Richard Miller, Tom Drazkowski, Howard Stenerson and Sarah Pettit 
 
Commissioners Absent: Marc Huneke  

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak 
Zoning Assistant Abby Breyfogle 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 8:0  

2. Approval of Minutes 

2Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 8:0  

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

Commissioner Stenerson stated he has a conflict regarding his plat request. 

4. Public Hearings 

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means 
Other than Fill 
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling 
above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of Wacouta Point Plat 
located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned District.  
  

The Applicant Curt Caverly (Caverly) was present to represent the application. 

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments.  Hanni stated that a neighbor 
of the parcel contacted her in support of another home being built there.   

Caverly stated that the elevation certificate in front of the board is not correct and he has an 
updated one. 

Commissioner Pettit requested changing the township endorsement from Stanton to Wacouta 
on the first page of the report.   

Commissioner Stenerson questioned what the footprint of the original house that was there 
was.   

Caverly stated that the house has been gone since the 50’s and he is unsure what the footprint 
was. 

Discussion regarding lot size being substandard and why a variance is not needed in this 
instance because of the parcel being shoreland. 



Page - 2 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Gale asked how high the flood mark on the basement will be. 

Caverly responded about 4 feet. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

3After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

4Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Fox, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling above the Base 
Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall provide an as-built Elevation Certificate verifying the first-floor elevation 
and  all electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and 
other service facilities meet or exceed the regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE) of 
683.0 feet mean sea level; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 24 (Suburban Residence District), Article 31 (Shoreland Regulations), and Article 
32 (Floodplain District). 

Motion carried 8:0  

 

PUBLIC HEARING: “Wildwood Gardens” Preliminary and Final Plat Review   
Request submitted by Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the 
proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. Parcels 43.135.0200 
and 43.136.0380. TBD Wildwood Lane Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SE ¼ of Sect 35 and 
the SW ¼, SW ¼ of Sect 36 in Twp 113, Range 14 in Wacouta Township. A2 Zoned District. 

 

Commissioner Stenerson stepped down for conflict of interest. 

The Applicant Howard Stenerson was present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.   

Stenerson stated there is no change in the use of the property or zoning changes.  He stated the 
purpose of this is to clean up a title.  He stated he has spoken to the township about where the 
easements are exactly.  He stated that they settled on dedicating the easements to the public 



Page - 3 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

but then the township did not sign off on it and is currently waiting for the County Board to 
sign off on it first.   

Further discussion regarding the dedication of the easements.   

Commissioner Nystuen asked if this property was where there was a proposed solar panel 
before. 

Stenerson responded that it was, but this has nothing to do with the solar panel.  He stated 
that he simply wants to clean up the title work.  He continued that the property is presently 
being used for crops and going forward none of the uses are being changed.   

Commissioner Pettit asked if there would be an issue if they approved the dedication of the 
easements and then what happens if the township decides not to.  

Hanni responded that after approval it would go to the County Board for approval in the 
beginning of March and we should know something between now and then from the township 
regarding what they decide.   

Commissioner Fox clarified that this was only for the easements on Stenerson’s property and 
not the neighboring properties.   

Staff responded that is correct.   

Discussion regarding what the easements are for exactly and the roads that come through the 
area.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Al Wolf (27985 flower valley lane) stated he wanted to make sure it had nothing to do with the 
solar panels. 

5After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Drazkowski and seconded by Commissioner Safe to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

6Motion by Commissioner Fox seconded by Commissioner Safe, for the Planning 
Advisory Commission to:   

 adopt the staff report with amendments into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record;  
and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat approval of the proposed “Wildwood 
Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
 

Motion Carried 7:0 (Commissioner Stenerson abstained from voting on this issue)  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  



Page - 4 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The Applicants were present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Michael Wozniak (Wozniak) commented that in the reports staff requested a more detailed 
seed plan from the applicants and have since received the same.   

Discussion between Michael Buffalini, representative for applicant, and Commissioner 
Stenerson regarding MNdot seed mix and it being native to the area. 

Drazkowski questioned what the difference was between the potential wetland lines and the 
wetland lines.   

Applicant responded that they were not able to do a field study to make sure there were not 
any wetlands in the area.  Once the conditions outside allows for a field study, the applicant 
will confirm if there is or isn’t wetlands.  Applicant stated that if there is wetland, they will 
move the array.   

Wozniak added that staff would require the wetland question to be resolved before building 
permits would be issued but does not necessarily need to be a part of the conditions since it will 
be subject to Beau Kennedy’s review during the building permit process.  

Discussion regarding solar arrays in wetlands or potential wetlands and direction from the 
state.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked when the project was started. 

Applicant stated around November which is why a field study hasn’t been done due to the 
winter months. 

Commissioner Nystuen asked why so many small solar arrays are going up all over the county 
instead of doing one big large one? 

Commissioner Gale responded that Excel Energy changed the standards for solar arrays to 
allow only 1 megawatt. 

Discussion regarding Excel Energy only wanting to allow 1 megawatt arrays everywhere 
instead of one large array.  Commissioner Stenerson added that a lot of the reasoning behind 
the change was due to State Legislature and Court Rulings.       

Commissioner Fox commented that we are letting industry dictate how we zone. 

Commissioner Miller stated he would like to have a discussion going forward regarding prime 
farm land and if these arrays should be allowed on prime farm land.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

7After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

 

Commissioner Stenerson is concerned about the arrays and their life span and if the panels 
will still be good at the end of 30 years.   



Page - 5 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

8Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Nystuen, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 6.65 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 8 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

Applicant is present to represent the application.  



Page - 6 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Drazkowski commented that he is concerned because solar arrays in the past 
were tucked away and hid behind vegetation etc., but now they seem to be more out in the 
open and there is no notation if neighbors have been talked to yet.  He continued that the detail 
in sightlines, fencing, buffering, etc., is missing and he would like to see this for all solar 
arrays.  

Discussion regarding location of the array and how it will be further away from the main 
road than the current array.   

Further discussion regarding regulations and trends in solar arrays and their policies and 
future limits. 

Applicant responded he relied on the owner to talk to the neighbors.  Applicant is unsure if that 
happened or not as owner is at a township meeting at this time.  Applicant stated that 
typically they would go out and speak to the neighbors but owner said he would take care of 
that since the neighbors were not upset with the first array that is already built and running.   

Wozniak stated that the county does not require the applicant to speak to the neighbors, it is 
encouraged but not required. 

Applicant stated if the neighbor would request vegetative screening they would be willing to 
accommodate that.   

Discussion regarding seed that would slow water flow so that there isn’t fast run off creating 
ditches of water and soil erosion.   

Applicant stated they will use silt fences and build everything to compaction as they go. 

Commissioner Stenerson questioned if the project was large enough to require an erosion 
control plan. 

Wozniak responded in the packet staff receives from the applicant’s erosion is thoroughly 
addressed. He continued that typically someone from the zoning staff inspects the site to make 
sure there are no erosion concerns. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Mark Chamberlain of Pine Island stated his concern isn’t the use of the land but he has a dairy 
farm currently and it is becoming boxed in with the amount of solar panels in his location.  
Since all of the solar panels have been installed his cows have become more and more agitated 
as the sun is up.  He is wondering if there any stray voltage coming off of the panels.  Mark 
continued that had a study done on his farm on stray voltage and didn’t see anything coming 
from power lines or anywhere the first test he had done, but one from the next year he saw 
some current coming into the farm site.   

Commissioner Nystruen asked if it was Excel Energy who did the study or if it was a private 
firm.   

Mark stated it was with a private firm. 

Commissioner Miller echoed Mark’s concern regarding stray voltage.   

Applicant stated that when they have had stray voltage tests done before and their arrays 
have never had any stray voltage from them.  He continued that they would be willing to do a 
stray voltage test for this neighbor. 



Page - 7 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Stenerson asked Mark if he had any discussions with Excel Energy about this 
issue.   

Mark responded no.   

9After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that these lines would be going up and down in voltage during 
the day and it is tied into Excel’s capacity limits. 

Commissioner Drazkowski asked if there is a screening plan or not. 

Hanni responded screening is typically only needed if the array is too close to the neighbors or 
if some neighbor came in and asked for it.  

Commissioner Fox commented that this particular array due to location didn’t have much 
concern for screening.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked what the process would be for a stray voltage study and what 
the benefit would be. 

Applicant stated they could contact the neighbors and give them the information.  He stated 
they use a 3rd party that would test and they would test their system as well as Excel’s system 
and/or high power line to see if there is any stray voltage.   

Commissioner Stenerson would like to add a condition going forward regarding the stray 
voltage study. 

Staff suggested conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A storm water management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 8 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

10Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Add condition #12; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 
acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to completion of 
any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The 
applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 



Page - 9 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

12. Applicants shall conduct a stray voltage study to be completed before and after building 
the solar array.  The applicant shall share the results with neighboring landowners and Land 
Use Management Staff.   

Commissioner Nystuen clarified that the study would be done before and after the array 
was built. 

Commissioner Pettit questioned what they would do if they found stray voltage?  

Commissioner Gale added that it would establish if there’s a problem and prove they aren’t 
adding to the problem.   

Commissioner Stenerson amended his motion to include that the results of the stray 
voltage testing be done before and after building the array and the results shall be shared 
with all neighbors.  Commissioner Miller seconded. 

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.4 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 
55992. Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 
Zoned District. 
  
Applicant is present to represent the application.  

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Fox commented that they got this one tucked in further than they originally had 
planned and he opined that this was a good way to handle solar arrays.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked about stray voltage here and wondered if this was the same 
powerline as the previous CUP. 

Staff responded that there’s a large distance between the two. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

11After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Pettit commented she has concerns regarding stray voltage issues as well as 
solar arrays taking up prime farm land.  She continued that this solar array is a good fit for 
the area.  

Commissioner Nystruen asked staff about the conditions being different between the last array 
and this one.  



Page - 10 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Wozniak responded that there are no wetland issues on this array so that condition was not 
needed.   

12Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Gale, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 
10.42 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

6. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

7. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

10. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date.  

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 
the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

The Applicant was present to represent the application. 



Page - 11 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Wozniak read comments from Beau Kennedy regarding wetland issues. 

 “No official wetland determination has been made for this portion of the solar project. 
However, I do not forsee any wetlands present within the project area.  Also, the first facility 
constructed in 2018 and witnessed some considerable erosion problems on north facing steep 
slopes.  Developer should take steps to assure no downstream sedimentation occurs during 
and after construction.” 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

13After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Fox commented on placement of this makes it so you barely see it. 

14Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5.63 
acres. 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 12 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 8:0  

5. Other discussion 
 
Discussion regarding township and county road condition to be added to the CUP applications 
and approval. 
 
Commissioner Pettit stated she would like to have a discussion going forward how to handle 
the solar arrays, stray voltage, and taking farm land out of commission.   
 
Discussion of what to include in the April 15th meeting regarding solar arrays: 
 What we’ve approved, where they are, what’s been built from what’s been approved. 
 How many are in Prime Farmland 
 Existing permits and their vicinity to feedlots 
 Decommissioning 
 Life span expansion 
  
Will set up a time for the solar panel April 15th meeting/discussion time at March meeting. 
 
15Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Nystuen, second by Commissioner Fox, to 
adjourn the Planning Advisory Commission meeting at 8:59 PM.  
Motion carried 8:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Abby Breyfogle; Recording Secretary  

                                                 
1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request to elevate a proposed dwelling above the 
Base Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 

Motion carried 8:0 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
6 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request the request for Preliminary and Final Plat 
approval of the proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
  Motion carried 8:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  



Page - 13 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                             
Motion carried 8:0 

8 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 6.65 acres. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 
9 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
10 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 acres.  
 Motion carried 8:0 
11 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
12 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy 
System (SES) occupying approximately 10.42 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
13 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
14 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request from for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System 
(SES) occupying approximately 5.63 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
15 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 8:0 















































 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 

Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 

Building | Planning | Zoning  

Telephone: 651.385.3104 

Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 

Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  County Board          HUNEKE 2 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 
Report date:  February 12, 2019 
 
CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) 
for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 10.4 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 55992. Part of the E 
½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) 
Address of zoning request: TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 55992 
Parcel(s): 38.033.0100 
Abbreviated Legal: Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township 
Township Information: Minneola Township acknowledged the CUP and approved a Township 
Permit for the request on 1/8/2019.   
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary  
Site Map(s) 
February 11, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicant has submitted a CUP request to construct and operate a one (1) Megawatt (MW) 
photovoltaic (PV) utility-scale solar garden on up to 10.42 acres of leased land located in Minneola 
Township that is currently owned by Andrew Huneke and Kim Huneke. The project would be 
developed in conjunction with the State of Minnesota Solar Garden program and Xcel Energy's Solar 
Rewards Community Program. The program allows developers to design, permit, own, and operate 
solar energy systems and sell the generated power directly to consumers. Upon completion, the “USS 
Solar Greenhouse LLC” Solar Garden would connect to Xcel Energy’s distribution grid and generate 
up to 1 MW of energy annually over the next 30 years.   

Per Goodhue County regulations, Solar Energy Systems (SES) that are the primary use of the land 
and are designed to primarily provide energy to off-site users or export to the wholesale market may 
be conditionally permitted as a “Utility-Scale SES” within the County’s A1 zoned districts.    

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 
fumes, dust, noise and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 2 of 4 

and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

 
Project Summary:  
Property Information: 
 The approximately 10.42-acre site to be leased by the applicant is currently used for row-crop 

agriculture (corn and soybeans) by the owner. 

Land use on the 72.97 acre parcel includes another one (1) Megawatt (MW) photovoltaic PV 
utility scale solar garden situated immediately  north of the proposed site on approximately 8 
acres. A CUP for this solar project that was developed by Innovative Power Systems was 
approved by the County Board in February, 2017 and the project has since been constructed (see 
enclosed site map).  The balance of the property is comprised of tilled cropland. 

Adjacent land uses include agriculture and low-density residential. 

The nearest residence (Parcel #380341100 – Jon P Yusten) is located 337 feet from the proposed 
facility.  There are existing trees and other vegetative cover that partially screens the proposed 
site from the Yusten property and the Bruce W Goodman property (Parcel #380341300) located 
southeast of the proposed site. 

 Section 33 and all of the surrounding Sections are located within the County’s A1 (Agriculture 
Protection) Zone.  

 The major equipment components of the project are solar panels, inverters, and racking. 

Solar Array: 
 The solar array is proposed to include 4046 solar panels.  The panels are mounted on a steel and 

aluminum racking structure positioned a fixed 30 degree tilt, and generally averages ten (10) feet 
above grade and will not exceed a maximum height of twenty (20) feet above grade. 

 The racking system is installed in the ground with I-beams that are driven directly into the 
ground at a depth usually between six (6) feet and ten (10) feet depending on soil conditions. 

 The only proposed grading that will occur is for the roads and concrete equipment pads. 

 The panels will be arranged into rows.  Each row of solar panels will connect to an inverter.  The 
inverters will be connected by trenched underground conduit that is housed inside of PVC 
housing which will be installed two (2) feet below the surface.  

 The inverters transform the direct current (DC) power generated by the photovoltaic system to 
alternating current (AC) power, which is then connected to the existing Xcel Energy three phase 
power distribution line at the point of common coupling (PCC). 

 MN 121819 would like to begin construction in April 2019 and complete the project before 
December 2019.  The construction process takes approximately nine months. 

 Construction, operation and maintenance crews will access the site by a proposed twelve (12) foot 
wide gravel road that has a forty (40) foot entrance off MN-60 on the north side of the property. 

 A recorded ingress/egress easement is not required for the property given the site is to be leased 
and all land to be crossed to access the site will remain under common ownership. 

A separate fire number will be required for the site. 

 Adequate emergency vehicle access is available to service the location. 

The access route would be composed of crushed aggregate to facilitate emergency vehicle access 
in inclement weather conditions. 

 The solar garden is sited to comply with all GCZO setback requirements for solar energy systems. 

Landscaping/Drainage: 
 Storm water management measures will be determined by EVS, a licensed civil engineering firm.  

They are a Minnesota based company with an enormous amount of experience designing solar 
arrays.  Since no substantial grading will be required, the use of erosion control logs and silt 
fences where necessary, and establishment of a germinated pollinator friendly base underneath 
the project site before construction begins to prevent erosion.  The project will be subject to 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 3 of 4 

National Pollution Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)/Storm water discharge permit 
requirements as administered by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency.  Land Use 
Management Department Staff will confirm that, these requirement have been met by the 
applicant during the Building Permit review.    

 The applicant has included a Level 1 Wetland Delineation Report for the Huneke 1 Project, 
prepared by Area M Consulting (Area M).  It is the professional opinion of Area M that the Study 
Area does not contain areas that satisfy the criteria to be wetlands.  They note that only state, 
federal, or local agencies have final authority over wetland extent and jurisdictional status.   

Beau Kennedy of the Goodhue SWCD (Wetlands Coordinator) has indicated that “no official 
wetland determination has been made for this project area.   However past delineations for this 
site did show a wetland to the north of the solar facility that was installed in 2018.  I would 
concur with the wetland report submitted with the CUP that no wetlands are present in this 
proposals project area.” 

 Aside from the gravel access road and meter pad, the entire area within the fenced 
project boundary will be restored to a low-maintenance seed mix, including the area 
below the solar panels.  The Applicant has been asked to specify the seed mix prior to 
County approval of the CUP.  Mike Bufulini with Gordian Energy, a representative of the 
Applicant has indicated that information regarding the specific seed mix to be used will 
be provided prior to the Planning Advisory Commission meeting on February 11. 

 The solar array will be contained within an area protected by a six-foot chain link fence with one 
foot of barbed wire above it.  

 Ample room exists on the property to fulfill GCZO off-street parking requirements.  

Maintenance/Decommissioning: 

 The project is subject to issuance of a Building Permit and must be constructed according to 
applicable building code requirements.  The project will be inspected by County Building 
Inspections Staff and the State Electrical Inspector.  In addition, Planning and Zoning Staff will 
inspect the project upon completion to ensure conformance with applicable zoning requirements. 

 MN121819, LLC, has indicated that the solar garden site will operate and be monitored 24 hours 
a day, 365 days a year after construction has been completed.  A description of proposed 
Operations and Emergency Response plans and contact personnel has been included in Exhibit J.  

 The Applicant has contractual obligations to the landowner regarding decommissioning arising 
out of Section 4.4 of the “LAND LEASE AND SOLAR EASEMENT” between the property owners 
(Andrew J. Huneke and Kim Y. Huneke) and MN121819 LLC.  These obligations include a 
provision for “Security for Removal”. Per GCZO Article 19, the applicant may be required to 
provide a financial surety at up to 125% of the estimated decommissioning cost. The county has 
not typically exercised the right to financial assurance requirements for similar solar 
installations.  The Planning Advisory Commission and County Board will need to decide if the 
County will require financial assurance to cover anticipated decommissioning costs. 

 The Applicant has prepared a Decommissioning Agreement between MN 121819 LLC and 
Andrew Huneke and Kim Huneke that includes removal of all equipment to a depth of 2-3 feet, 
timelines for removal, and the establishment of a financial security. The Applicant has estimated 
total costs for decommissioning to be $87,767 and has estimated the salvage value of reclaimed 
materials to be $86,126. 

 Per GCZO Article 19, the applicant may be required to provide a financial surety at up to 125% of 
the estimated decommissioning cost. The county has not typically exercised the right to financial 
assurance requirements for similar solar installations.  The Planning Advisory Commission and 
County Board will need to decide if the County will require financial assurance to cover 
anticipated decommissioning costs. 

 

  



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 4 of 4 

PAC Findings of Fact: 
1. The proposed Solar Garden does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in 

the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The use appears harmonious with the established uses 
in the vicinity. There is an existing Solar Garden existing directly south of the subject site that has 
been functioning without record of complaint from neighboring residences. 

2. The establishment of the proposed Solar Garden is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance and it does not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. 

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicants’ 
lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to 
neighboring properties will result. 

 
PAC Recommendation: 
Planning Advisory Commission recommends the County Board  

 adopt the staff report into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 
 

APPROVE the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim 
Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.42 acres. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to ownership 
transfer or operator changes; 

5. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for administrative 
review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

6. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

7. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 19 
Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The applicant 
shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

10. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that date. 



Page - 1 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Court Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Darwin Fox, Richard (Dick) Nystuen, Tom Gale, Scott Safe (for Barney 
Nesseth), Richard Miller, Tom Drazkowski, Howard Stenerson and Sarah Pettit 
 
Commissioners Absent: Marc Huneke  

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak 
Zoning Assistant Abby Breyfogle 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 8:0  

2. Approval of Minutes 

2Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 8:0  

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

Commissioner Stenerson stated he has a conflict regarding his plat request. 

4. Public Hearings 

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means 
Other than Fill 
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling 
above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of Wacouta Point Plat 
located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned District.  
  

The Applicant Curt Caverly (Caverly) was present to represent the application. 

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments.  Hanni stated that a neighbor 
of the parcel contacted her in support of another home being built there.   

Caverly stated that the elevation certificate in front of the board is not correct and he has an 
updated one. 

Commissioner Pettit requested changing the township endorsement from Stanton to Wacouta 
on the first page of the report.   

Commissioner Stenerson questioned what the footprint of the original house that was there 
was.   

Caverly stated that the house has been gone since the 50’s and he is unsure what the footprint 
was. 

Discussion regarding lot size being substandard and why a variance is not needed in this 
instance because of the parcel being shoreland. 



Page - 2 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Gale asked how high the flood mark on the basement will be. 

Caverly responded about 4 feet. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

3After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

4Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Fox, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling above the Base 
Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall provide an as-built Elevation Certificate verifying the first-floor elevation 
and  all electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and 
other service facilities meet or exceed the regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE) of 
683.0 feet mean sea level; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 24 (Suburban Residence District), Article 31 (Shoreland Regulations), and Article 
32 (Floodplain District). 

Motion carried 8:0  

 

PUBLIC HEARING: “Wildwood Gardens” Preliminary and Final Plat Review   
Request submitted by Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the 
proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. Parcels 43.135.0200 
and 43.136.0380. TBD Wildwood Lane Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SE ¼ of Sect 35 and 
the SW ¼, SW ¼ of Sect 36 in Twp 113, Range 14 in Wacouta Township. A2 Zoned District. 

 

Commissioner Stenerson stepped down for conflict of interest. 

The Applicant Howard Stenerson was present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.   

Stenerson stated there is no change in the use of the property or zoning changes.  He stated the 
purpose of this is to clean up a title.  He stated he has spoken to the township about where the 
easements are exactly.  He stated that they settled on dedicating the easements to the public 



Page - 3 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

but then the township did not sign off on it and is currently waiting for the County Board to 
sign off on it first.   

Further discussion regarding the dedication of the easements.   

Commissioner Nystuen asked if this property was where there was a proposed solar panel 
before. 

Stenerson responded that it was, but this has nothing to do with the solar panel.  He stated 
that he simply wants to clean up the title work.  He continued that the property is presently 
being used for crops and going forward none of the uses are being changed.   

Commissioner Pettit asked if there would be an issue if they approved the dedication of the 
easements and then what happens if the township decides not to.  

Hanni responded that after approval it would go to the County Board for approval in the 
beginning of March and we should know something between now and then from the township 
regarding what they decide.   

Commissioner Fox clarified that this was only for the easements on Stenerson’s property and 
not the neighboring properties.   

Staff responded that is correct.   

Discussion regarding what the easements are for exactly and the roads that come through the 
area.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Al Wolf (27985 flower valley lane) stated he wanted to make sure it had nothing to do with the 
solar panels. 

5After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Drazkowski and seconded by Commissioner Safe to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

6Motion by Commissioner Fox seconded by Commissioner Safe, for the Planning 
Advisory Commission to:   

 adopt the staff report with amendments into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record;  
and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat approval of the proposed “Wildwood 
Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
 

Motion Carried 7:0 (Commissioner Stenerson abstained from voting on this issue)  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  



Page - 4 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The Applicants were present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Michael Wozniak (Wozniak) commented that in the reports staff requested a more detailed 
seed plan from the applicants and have since received the same.   

Discussion between Michael Buffalini, representative for applicant, and Commissioner 
Stenerson regarding MNdot seed mix and it being native to the area. 

Drazkowski questioned what the difference was between the potential wetland lines and the 
wetland lines.   

Applicant responded that they were not able to do a field study to make sure there were not 
any wetlands in the area.  Once the conditions outside allows for a field study, the applicant 
will confirm if there is or isn’t wetlands.  Applicant stated that if there is wetland, they will 
move the array.   

Wozniak added that staff would require the wetland question to be resolved before building 
permits would be issued but does not necessarily need to be a part of the conditions since it will 
be subject to Beau Kennedy’s review during the building permit process.  

Discussion regarding solar arrays in wetlands or potential wetlands and direction from the 
state.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked when the project was started. 

Applicant stated around November which is why a field study hasn’t been done due to the 
winter months. 

Commissioner Nystuen asked why so many small solar arrays are going up all over the county 
instead of doing one big large one? 

Commissioner Gale responded that Excel Energy changed the standards for solar arrays to 
allow only 1 megawatt. 

Discussion regarding Excel Energy only wanting to allow 1 megawatt arrays everywhere 
instead of one large array.  Commissioner Stenerson added that a lot of the reasoning behind 
the change was due to State Legislature and Court Rulings.       

Commissioner Fox commented that we are letting industry dictate how we zone. 

Commissioner Miller stated he would like to have a discussion going forward regarding prime 
farm land and if these arrays should be allowed on prime farm land.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

7After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

 

Commissioner Stenerson is concerned about the arrays and their life span and if the panels 
will still be good at the end of 30 years.   



Page - 5 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

8Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Nystuen, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 6.65 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 8 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

Applicant is present to represent the application.  



Page - 6 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Drazkowski commented that he is concerned because solar arrays in the past 
were tucked away and hid behind vegetation etc., but now they seem to be more out in the 
open and there is no notation if neighbors have been talked to yet.  He continued that the detail 
in sightlines, fencing, buffering, etc., is missing and he would like to see this for all solar 
arrays.  

Discussion regarding location of the array and how it will be further away from the main 
road than the current array.   

Further discussion regarding regulations and trends in solar arrays and their policies and 
future limits. 

Applicant responded he relied on the owner to talk to the neighbors.  Applicant is unsure if that 
happened or not as owner is at a township meeting at this time.  Applicant stated that 
typically they would go out and speak to the neighbors but owner said he would take care of 
that since the neighbors were not upset with the first array that is already built and running.   

Wozniak stated that the county does not require the applicant to speak to the neighbors, it is 
encouraged but not required. 

Applicant stated if the neighbor would request vegetative screening they would be willing to 
accommodate that.   

Discussion regarding seed that would slow water flow so that there isn’t fast run off creating 
ditches of water and soil erosion.   

Applicant stated they will use silt fences and build everything to compaction as they go. 

Commissioner Stenerson questioned if the project was large enough to require an erosion 
control plan. 

Wozniak responded in the packet staff receives from the applicant’s erosion is thoroughly 
addressed. He continued that typically someone from the zoning staff inspects the site to make 
sure there are no erosion concerns. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Mark Chamberlain of Pine Island stated his concern isn’t the use of the land but he has a dairy 
farm currently and it is becoming boxed in with the amount of solar panels in his location.  
Since all of the solar panels have been installed his cows have become more and more agitated 
as the sun is up.  He is wondering if there any stray voltage coming off of the panels.  Mark 
continued that had a study done on his farm on stray voltage and didn’t see anything coming 
from power lines or anywhere the first test he had done, but one from the next year he saw 
some current coming into the farm site.   

Commissioner Nystruen asked if it was Excel Energy who did the study or if it was a private 
firm.   

Mark stated it was with a private firm. 

Commissioner Miller echoed Mark’s concern regarding stray voltage.   

Applicant stated that when they have had stray voltage tests done before and their arrays 
have never had any stray voltage from them.  He continued that they would be willing to do a 
stray voltage test for this neighbor. 



Page - 7 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Stenerson asked Mark if he had any discussions with Excel Energy about this 
issue.   

Mark responded no.   

9After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that these lines would be going up and down in voltage during 
the day and it is tied into Excel’s capacity limits. 

Commissioner Drazkowski asked if there is a screening plan or not. 

Hanni responded screening is typically only needed if the array is too close to the neighbors or 
if some neighbor came in and asked for it.  

Commissioner Fox commented that this particular array due to location didn’t have much 
concern for screening.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked what the process would be for a stray voltage study and what 
the benefit would be. 

Applicant stated they could contact the neighbors and give them the information.  He stated 
they use a 3rd party that would test and they would test their system as well as Excel’s system 
and/or high power line to see if there is any stray voltage.   

Commissioner Stenerson would like to add a condition going forward regarding the stray 
voltage study. 

Staff suggested conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A storm water management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 8 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

10Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Add condition #12; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 
acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to completion of 
any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The 
applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 



Page - 9 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

12. Applicants shall conduct a stray voltage study to be completed before and after building 
the solar array.  The applicant shall share the results with neighboring landowners and Land 
Use Management Staff.   

Commissioner Nystuen clarified that the study would be done before and after the array 
was built. 

Commissioner Pettit questioned what they would do if they found stray voltage?  

Commissioner Gale added that it would establish if there’s a problem and prove they aren’t 
adding to the problem.   

Commissioner Stenerson amended his motion to include that the results of the stray 
voltage testing be done before and after building the array and the results shall be shared 
with all neighbors.  Commissioner Miller seconded. 

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.4 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 
55992. Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 
Zoned District. 
  
Applicant is present to represent the application.  

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Fox commented that they got this one tucked in further than they originally had 
planned and he opined that this was a good way to handle solar arrays.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked about stray voltage here and wondered if this was the same 
powerline as the previous CUP. 

Staff responded that there’s a large distance between the two. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

11After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Pettit commented she has concerns regarding stray voltage issues as well as 
solar arrays taking up prime farm land.  She continued that this solar array is a good fit for 
the area.  

Commissioner Nystruen asked staff about the conditions being different between the last array 
and this one.  



Page - 10 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Wozniak responded that there are no wetland issues on this array so that condition was not 
needed.   

12Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Gale, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 
10.42 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

6. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

7. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

10. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date.  

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 
the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

The Applicant was present to represent the application. 



Page - 11 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Wozniak read comments from Beau Kennedy regarding wetland issues. 

 “No official wetland determination has been made for this portion of the solar project. 
However, I do not forsee any wetlands present within the project area.  Also, the first facility 
constructed in 2018 and witnessed some considerable erosion problems on north facing steep 
slopes.  Developer should take steps to assure no downstream sedimentation occurs during 
and after construction.” 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

13After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Fox commented on placement of this makes it so you barely see it. 

14Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5.63 
acres. 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 12 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 8:0  

5. Other discussion 
 
Discussion regarding township and county road condition to be added to the CUP applications 
and approval. 
 
Commissioner Pettit stated she would like to have a discussion going forward how to handle 
the solar arrays, stray voltage, and taking farm land out of commission.   
 
Discussion of what to include in the April 15th meeting regarding solar arrays: 
 What we’ve approved, where they are, what’s been built from what’s been approved. 
 How many are in Prime Farmland 
 Existing permits and their vicinity to feedlots 
 Decommissioning 
 Life span expansion 
  
Will set up a time for the solar panel April 15th meeting/discussion time at March meeting. 
 
15Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Nystuen, second by Commissioner Fox, to 
adjourn the Planning Advisory Commission meeting at 8:59 PM.  
Motion carried 8:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Abby Breyfogle; Recording Secretary  

                                                 
1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request to elevate a proposed dwelling above the 
Base Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 

Motion carried 8:0 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
6 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request the request for Preliminary and Final Plat 
approval of the proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
  Motion carried 8:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  



Page - 13 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                             
Motion carried 8:0 

8 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 6.65 acres. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 
9 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
10 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 acres.  
 Motion carried 8:0 
11 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
12 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy 
System (SES) occupying approximately 10.42 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
13 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
14 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request from for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System 
(SES) occupying approximately 5.63 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
15 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 8:0 















































 
 

 

“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 1 of 4 

Environmental Health | Land Surveying | GIS 

Telephone:  651.385.3223 

Fax:  651.385.3098 

Lisa M. Hanni, L.S. Director 

Building | Planning | Zoning  

Telephone: 651.385.3104 

Fax: 651.385.3106 

Goodhue County Land Use Management 

Goodhue County Government Center | 509 West Fifth Street | Red Wing, Minnesota 55066 

 County Surveyor / Recorder 

To:  County Board 
From: Land Use Management  
Meeting Date: February 19, 2019 
Report date:  February 12, 2019 
 
CONSIDER: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5.63 
acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 
111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District. 
 
Application Information: 
Applicant: MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) 
Address of zoning request: TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027 
Parcel(s): 33.027.0400 
Abbreviated Legal: Part of the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township  
Township Information: Goodhue Township issued a Township Zoning Approval for the request on 
1/21/19.  No conditions were cited. 
Zoning District: A1 (Agriculture Protection District) 
 
Attachments and links: 
Application and submitted project summary (excerpt of submitted materials; full submittal available 
from  LUM Department upon request) 
Site Map(s) 
February 11, 2019 Planning Commission Meeting Minutes 
Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance (GCZO): 
http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428  
 
Background:  
The applicant has submitted a CUP request to construct and operate a one (1) Megawatt (MW) 
photovoltaic (PV) utility-scale solar garden on approximately 5.63 acres of leased land located in 
Goodhue Township that is currently owned by Paul Betcher. The project would be developed in 
conjunction with the State of Minnesota Solar Garden program and Xcel Energy's Solar Rewards 
Community Program. The program allows developers to design, permit, own, and operate solar 
energy systems and sell the generated power directly to consumers. Upon completion, the Solar 
Garden would connect to Xcel Energy’s distribution grid and generate up to 1 MW of energy annually 
over the next 25 years.   

Per Goodhue County regulations, Solar Energy Systems (SES) that are the primary use of the land 
and are designed to primarily provide energy to off-site users or export to the wholesale market may 
be conditionally permitted as a “Utility-Scale SES” within the County’s A1 zoned districts.    

Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance: Article 4 Conditional/Interim Uses 
No CUP/IUP shall be recommended by the County Planning Commission unless said Commission specifies 
facts in their findings for each case which establish the proposed CUP/IUP will not be injurious to the use and 
enjoyment of other property in the immediate vicinity for the purposes already permitted, will not 
substantially diminish and impair property values within the immediate vicinity, will not impede the normal 
and orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to the 
area, that adequate measures have been, or will be, taken to provide utilities, access roads, drainage and 
other necessary facilities, to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space, to control offensive odor, 

http://www.co.goodhue.mn.us/DocumentCenter/View/2428


“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 2 of 4 

fumes, dust, noise and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance, and to control lighted signs 
and other lights in such a manner that no disturbance to neighboring properties will result. 

Project Summary:  
Property Information: 
 The approximately 5.63-acre site to be leased by the applicant is currently used for row-crop 

agriculture (corn and soybeans) by the owner.  

The 159-acre Betcher property includes a dwelling, a registered feedlot, tilled cropland, and 
pasture areas. There is an existing 1 MW SES located on the property directly south of the 
proposed site. The site was approved February 2017 (CUP Z17-0005) and installation was 
completed in the fall of 2018. 

Adjacent land uses include agriculture and low-density residential. 

The nearest residence is located approximately 500 feet northeast of the proposed facility (Kimm 
Burns). The Goodhue City limits abut the site to the west.  

 Adjacent zoning districts include A1 (Agriculture Protection) to north, east, and south; A3 (Urban 
Fringe)/City of Goodhue to the west. 

Solar Array: 
 The solar array is proposed to include 4046 solar modules (panels) installed in 6 rows spaced 38 

feet apart.   

Single-axis tracker racks tilted at 30 degrees will hold up solar panels, reaching a typical height of 
10 feet above grade.  

The racking will be installed with piles that are anchored into the ground to an appropriate depth 
based on detailed structural and geotechnical analysis. 

The solar array will interconnect to the power grid via a pad-mounted transformer at the north 
edge of the project area, facilitating connection to an existing Xcel Energy circuit. 

 An existing driveway access to CTY 9 BLVD servicing the established SES to the south will also be 
used for the new site. The 12-foot wide access drive is composed of crushed aggregate. 
Emergency vehicle access appears adequate to service the facility. 

A recorded ingress/egress easement is not required for the property given the site is to be leased 
and all land to be crossed to access the site will remain under common ownership. 

A separate fire number will be required for the new project site. 

 Once constructed, traffic to the site would be limited to four visits per year (quarterly) by two 
maintenance personnel to perform routine maintenance, in addition to any unplanned 
maintenance.  During the first few years of operation two vegetation maintenance personnel will 
visit the site a handful of times per year and then an anticipated four times per year for the 
duration of the project.  

 The solar garden is sited to comply with all GCZO setback requirements for Solar Energy 
Systems. 

Landscaping/Drainage: 
 The site slopes generally from south to the north with stormwater runoff draining towards the 

lower areas in the northwest corner of the parcel. 

Apart from the gravel access road and meter pad, the entire area within the fenced project 
boundary will be restored to a low-maintenance seed mix, including the area below the solar 
panels. A “pollinator friendly” seed mix designed to grow no more than 2 feet tall will be selected 
in accordance with Minnesota Department of Transportation native seed mix design guidelines. 

 A level-1 Wetland Delineation Report completed by Area M Consulting on behalf of the Applicant 
indicated no wetlands were present in the project area.  

 Beau Kennedy with the Goodhue SWCD reviewed the application materials and offered the 
following comments:  

No official wetland determination has been made for this portion of the solar project. However, 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 3 of 4 

I do not foresee any wetlands present within the project area. Also, the first facility constructed 
in 2018 on this farm witnessed some significant erosion problems on the north facing steep 
slopes. Developer should take steps to assure no downstream sedimentation during and after 
construction when developing panel layouts and SWPPP. 

 The application notes that stormwater management measures will be determined by EVS, a 
licensed civil engineering firm. Measures will include an analysis of the existing topography and 
the use of control logs and silt fences where necessary.  

An erosion control/stormwater management plan is customarily submitted for administrative 
review at the time of building permit application. 

 The Applicant stated they conducted a site visit and visual impact analysis and stated that there 
would be a minimal visual impact on nearby properties. There is no vegetative screening existing 
at the site or proposed. Crops grown around the site provide some cover during the growing 
season. Screening was not required for the existing SES installation to the south. The Planning 
Commission should consider whether any screening of the proposed SES is warranted.  

 A 6-foot tall chain-link fence with a 1-foot barbed wire top will be constructed around the 
perimeter of the project area for security.   

 Ample room exists on the property to fulfill GCZO off-street parking requirements.  

 Construction is expected to last 9 months from April to December 2019. Construction crews 
would operate from 8:00 AM to 6:00 PM daily.  

 A Cultural Resource Literature Review completed by Area M Consulting on behalf of the 
Applicant indicated no cultural resources were identified in the project area.  

Maintenance/Decommissioning: 
 The project is subject to issuance of a Building Permit and must be constructed according to 

applicable building code requirements. The project will be inspected by County Building 
Inspections Staff and the State Electrical Inspector.  In addition, Planning and Zoning Staff will 
inspect the project upon completion to ensure conformance with applicable zoning requirements. 

 MN 121819 LLC has a long-term maintenance plan to ensure safety, reliable operation, and 
production of the system. Monitoring and metering equipment installed on site will alert the 
maintenance team in real-time of a system performance issue.  

 The Applicant has prepared a Decommissioning Agreement between MN 121819 LLC and Paul 
Betcher that includes removal of all equipment to a depth of 2-3 feet, timelines for removal, and 
the establishment of a financial security. The Applicant has estimated total costs for 
decommissioning to be $87,767 and has estimated the salvage value of reclaimed materials to be 
$86,126. 

Per GCZO Article 19, the applicant may be required to provide a financial surety at up to 125% of 
the estimated decommissioning cost. The county has not typically exercised the right to financial 
assurance requirements for similar solar installations.  The Planning Advisory Commission and 
County Board will need to decide if the County will require financial assurance to cover 
anticipated decommissioning costs. 

 

PAC Findings of Fact: 
1. The proposed Solar Garden does not appear injurious to the use and enjoyment of properties in 

the immediate vicinity for uses already permitted, nor would it substantially diminish and impair 
property values in the immediate vicinity. The use appears harmonious with the established uses 
in the vicinity. There is an existing Solar Garden existing directly south of the subject site that has 
been functioning without record of complaint from neighboring residences. 

2. The establishment of the proposed Solar Garden is not anticipated to impede the normal and 
orderly development and improvement of surrounding vacant property for uses predominant to 
the area. The use is proposed to meet all development standards of the Goodhue County Zoning 
Ordinance and it does not appear incompatible with adjacent land uses. 



“To effectively promote the safety, health, and well-being of our residents” 

www.co.goodhue.mn.us 
Page 4 of 4 

3. A review of the applicants submitted project summary indicates adequate utilities, access roads, 
drainage, and other necessary facilities are available to accommodate the proposed use.  

4. The submitted plans identify means to provide sufficient off-street parking and loading space to 
serve the proposed use and meet the Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance’s parking requirements.  

5. The submitted plans detail adequate measures to prevent or control offensive odor, fumes, dust, 
noise, and vibration so that none of these will constitute a nuisance. Furthermore, the applicants’ 
lighting plans appear capable of controlling lights in such a manner that no disturbance to 
neighboring properties will result. 

 
PAC Recommendation: 
Planning Advisory Commission recommends the County Board  

 adopt the staff report into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record; and 
 

APPROVE the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. 
Subject to the following conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue County 
Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to ownership 
transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the Goodhue 
SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to completion of any site 
grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for administrative 
review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, Article 19 
Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The applicant 
shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that date. 

 







Page - 1 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The meeting of the Goodhue County Planning Advisory Commission was called to order at 7:00 
PM by Chair Darwin Fox at the Goodhue County Government Center 3rd Floor Court Room in 
Red Wing, Minnesota. 

Roll Call 

Commissioners Present: Darwin Fox, Richard (Dick) Nystuen, Tom Gale, Scott Safe (for Barney 
Nesseth), Richard Miller, Tom Drazkowski, Howard Stenerson and Sarah Pettit 
 
Commissioners Absent: Marc Huneke  

Staff Present: Land Use Management Director Lisa Hanni, Zoning Administrator Mike Wozniak 
Zoning Assistant Abby Breyfogle 

1. Approval of Agenda 

1Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to approve the meeting 
agenda. Motion carried 8:0  

2. Approval of Minutes 

2Motion by Commissioner Gale; seconded by Commissioner Fox to approve the previous 
month’s meeting minutes. Motion carried 8:0  

3. Conflict/Disclosure of Interest  

Commissioner Stenerson stated he has a conflict regarding his plat request. 

4. Public Hearings 

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP Request to Elevate a Dwelling within a Floodplain by Means 
Other than Fill 
Request submitted by Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling 
above the base flood elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Parcel 43.230.0060. TBD Lake View Ave Red Wing, MN 55066. Lot 6, Block 1 of Wacouta Point Plat 
located in Sect 31 Twp 113, Range 13 in Wacouta Township. R1 Zoned District.  
  

The Applicant Curt Caverly (Caverly) was present to represent the application. 

Lisa Hanni (Hanni) presented the staff report and attachments.  Hanni stated that a neighbor 
of the parcel contacted her in support of another home being built there.   

Caverly stated that the elevation certificate in front of the board is not correct and he has an 
updated one. 

Commissioner Pettit requested changing the township endorsement from Stanton to Wacouta 
on the first page of the report.   

Commissioner Stenerson questioned what the footprint of the original house that was there 
was.   

Caverly stated that the house has been gone since the 50’s and he is unsure what the footprint 
was. 

Discussion regarding lot size being substandard and why a variance is not needed in this 
instance because of the parcel being shoreland. 



Page - 2 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Gale asked how high the flood mark on the basement will be. 

Caverly responded about 4 feet. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

3After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Fox and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

4Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Fox, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Curt Caverly (Buyer) and John Enblom (Owner) to elevate a proposed dwelling above the Base 
Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 
Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. Applicant shall provide an as-built Elevation Certificate verifying the first-floor elevation 
and  all electrical, heating, ventilation, plumbing and air conditioning equipment and 
other service facilities meet or exceed the regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE) of 
683.0 feet mean sea level; 

3. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 24 (Suburban Residence District), Article 31 (Shoreland Regulations), and Article 
32 (Floodplain District). 

Motion carried 8:0  

 

PUBLIC HEARING: “Wildwood Gardens” Preliminary and Final Plat Review   
Request submitted by Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat review of the 
proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. Parcels 43.135.0200 
and 43.136.0380. TBD Wildwood Lane Red Wing, MN 55066. Part of the SE ¼ of Sect 35 and 
the SW ¼, SW ¼ of Sect 36 in Twp 113, Range 14 in Wacouta Township. A2 Zoned District. 

 

Commissioner Stenerson stepped down for conflict of interest. 

The Applicant Howard Stenerson was present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.   

Stenerson stated there is no change in the use of the property or zoning changes.  He stated the 
purpose of this is to clean up a title.  He stated he has spoken to the township about where the 
easements are exactly.  He stated that they settled on dedicating the easements to the public 



Page - 3 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

but then the township did not sign off on it and is currently waiting for the County Board to 
sign off on it first.   

Further discussion regarding the dedication of the easements.   

Commissioner Nystuen asked if this property was where there was a proposed solar panel 
before. 

Stenerson responded that it was, but this has nothing to do with the solar panel.  He stated 
that he simply wants to clean up the title work.  He continued that the property is presently 
being used for crops and going forward none of the uses are being changed.   

Commissioner Pettit asked if there would be an issue if they approved the dedication of the 
easements and then what happens if the township decides not to.  

Hanni responded that after approval it would go to the County Board for approval in the 
beginning of March and we should know something between now and then from the township 
regarding what they decide.   

Commissioner Fox clarified that this was only for the easements on Stenerson’s property and 
not the neighboring properties.   

Staff responded that is correct.   

Discussion regarding what the easements are for exactly and the roads that come through the 
area.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Al Wolf (27985 flower valley lane) stated he wanted to make sure it had nothing to do with the 
solar panels. 

5After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Drazkowski and seconded by Commissioner Safe to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

6Motion by Commissioner Fox seconded by Commissioner Safe, for the Planning 
Advisory Commission to:   

 adopt the staff report with amendments into the record;  

 adopt the findings of fact;  

 accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the record;  
and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request submitted by 
Howard Stenerson (Owner) for Preliminary and Final Plat approval of the proposed “Wildwood 
Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
 

Motion Carried 7:0 (Commissioner Stenerson abstained from voting on this issue)  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 6.65 acres. Parcel 26.032.0400. TBD 390th Ave, Goodhue, MN 55027. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 32 Twp 111 Range 14 in Belvidere Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  



Page - 4 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

The Applicants were present to represent the application. 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Michael Wozniak (Wozniak) commented that in the reports staff requested a more detailed 
seed plan from the applicants and have since received the same.   

Discussion between Michael Buffalini, representative for applicant, and Commissioner 
Stenerson regarding MNdot seed mix and it being native to the area. 

Drazkowski questioned what the difference was between the potential wetland lines and the 
wetland lines.   

Applicant responded that they were not able to do a field study to make sure there were not 
any wetlands in the area.  Once the conditions outside allows for a field study, the applicant 
will confirm if there is or isn’t wetlands.  Applicant stated that if there is wetland, they will 
move the array.   

Wozniak added that staff would require the wetland question to be resolved before building 
permits would be issued but does not necessarily need to be a part of the conditions since it will 
be subject to Beau Kennedy’s review during the building permit process.  

Discussion regarding solar arrays in wetlands or potential wetlands and direction from the 
state.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked when the project was started. 

Applicant stated around November which is why a field study hasn’t been done due to the 
winter months. 

Commissioner Nystuen asked why so many small solar arrays are going up all over the county 
instead of doing one big large one? 

Commissioner Gale responded that Excel Energy changed the standards for solar arrays to 
allow only 1 megawatt. 

Discussion regarding Excel Energy only wanting to allow 1 megawatt arrays everywhere 
instead of one large array.  Commissioner Stenerson added that a lot of the reasoning behind 
the change was due to State Legislature and Court Rulings.       

Commissioner Fox commented that we are letting industry dictate how we zone. 

Commissioner Miller stated he would like to have a discussion going forward regarding prime 
farm land and if these arrays should be allowed on prime farm land.   

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

7After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Miller to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

 

Commissioner Stenerson is concerned about the arrays and their life span and if the panels 
will still be good at the end of 30 years.   



Page - 5 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

8Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Nystuen, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 6.65 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 8 acres. Parcel 39.007.0301. TBD 180th Ave, Zumbrota, MN 55992. 
Part of the NW ¼ of Sect 07 Twp 109 Range 15 in Pine Island Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

Applicant is present to represent the application.  



Page - 6 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Drazkowski commented that he is concerned because solar arrays in the past 
were tucked away and hid behind vegetation etc., but now they seem to be more out in the 
open and there is no notation if neighbors have been talked to yet.  He continued that the detail 
in sightlines, fencing, buffering, etc., is missing and he would like to see this for all solar 
arrays.  

Discussion regarding location of the array and how it will be further away from the main 
road than the current array.   

Further discussion regarding regulations and trends in solar arrays and their policies and 
future limits. 

Applicant responded he relied on the owner to talk to the neighbors.  Applicant is unsure if that 
happened or not as owner is at a township meeting at this time.  Applicant stated that 
typically they would go out and speak to the neighbors but owner said he would take care of 
that since the neighbors were not upset with the first array that is already built and running.   

Wozniak stated that the county does not require the applicant to speak to the neighbors, it is 
encouraged but not required. 

Applicant stated if the neighbor would request vegetative screening they would be willing to 
accommodate that.   

Discussion regarding seed that would slow water flow so that there isn’t fast run off creating 
ditches of water and soil erosion.   

Applicant stated they will use silt fences and build everything to compaction as they go. 

Commissioner Stenerson questioned if the project was large enough to require an erosion 
control plan. 

Wozniak responded in the packet staff receives from the applicant’s erosion is thoroughly 
addressed. He continued that typically someone from the zoning staff inspects the site to make 
sure there are no erosion concerns. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

Mark Chamberlain of Pine Island stated his concern isn’t the use of the land but he has a dairy 
farm currently and it is becoming boxed in with the amount of solar panels in his location.  
Since all of the solar panels have been installed his cows have become more and more agitated 
as the sun is up.  He is wondering if there any stray voltage coming off of the panels.  Mark 
continued that had a study done on his farm on stray voltage and didn’t see anything coming 
from power lines or anywhere the first test he had done, but one from the next year he saw 
some current coming into the farm site.   

Commissioner Nystruen asked if it was Excel Energy who did the study or if it was a private 
firm.   

Mark stated it was with a private firm. 

Commissioner Miller echoed Mark’s concern regarding stray voltage.   

Applicant stated that when they have had stray voltage tests done before and their arrays 
have never had any stray voltage from them.  He continued that they would be willing to do a 
stray voltage test for this neighbor. 



Page - 7 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Commissioner Stenerson asked Mark if he had any discussions with Excel Energy about this 
issue.   

Mark responded no.   

9After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by Commissioner 
Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Drazkowski to close the public hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 

Commissioner Stenerson stated that these lines would be going up and down in voltage during 
the day and it is tied into Excel’s capacity limits. 

Commissioner Drazkowski asked if there is a screening plan or not. 

Hanni responded screening is typically only needed if the array is too close to the neighbors or 
if some neighbor came in and asked for it.  

Commissioner Fox commented that this particular array due to location didn’t have much 
concern for screening.  

Commissioner Stenerson asked what the process would be for a stray voltage study and what 
the benefit would be. 

Applicant stated they could contact the neighbors and give them the information.  He stated 
they use a 3rd party that would test and they would test their system as well as Excel’s system 
and/or high power line to see if there is any stray voltage.   

Commissioner Stenerson would like to add a condition going forward regarding the stray 
voltage study. 

Staff suggested conditions: 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A storm water management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 8 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

10Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Add condition #12; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 
acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to completion of 
any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  The 
applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with applicable zoning 
requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 



Page - 9 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

12. Applicants shall conduct a stray voltage study to be completed before and after building 
the solar array.  The applicant shall share the results with neighboring landowners and Land 
Use Management Staff.   

Commissioner Nystuen clarified that the study would be done before and after the array 
was built. 

Commissioner Pettit questioned what they would do if they found stray voltage?  

Commissioner Gale added that it would establish if there’s a problem and prove they aren’t 
adding to the problem.   

Commissioner Stenerson amended his motion to include that the results of the stray 
voltage testing be done before and after building the array and the results shall be shared 
with all neighbors.  Commissioner Miller seconded. 

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke 
(owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) 
occupying approximately 10.4 acres. Parcel 38.033.0100. TBD ST HWY 60, Zumbrota, MN 
55992. Part of the E ½ of the NE ¼ of Sect 33 Twp 110 Range 16 in Minneola Township. A1 
Zoned District. 
  
Applicant is present to represent the application.  

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Commissioner Fox commented that they got this one tucked in further than they originally had 
planned and he opined that this was a good way to handle solar arrays.   

Commissioner Stenerson asked about stray voltage here and wondered if this was the same 
powerline as the previous CUP. 

Staff responded that there’s a large distance between the two. 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

11After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Pettit commented she has concerns regarding stray voltage issues as well as 
solar arrays taking up prime farm land.  She continued that this solar array is a good fit for 
the area.  

Commissioner Nystruen asked staff about the conditions being different between the last array 
and this one.  



Page - 10 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Wozniak responded that there are no wetland issues on this array so that condition was not 
needed.   

12Motion by Commissioner Stenerson seconded by Commissioner Gale, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-
Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 
10.42 acres.  Subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

6. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

7. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 

8. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

9. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

10. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date.  

Motion carried 8:0  

PUBLIC HEARING: Request for CUP for a Utility-Scale Solar Energy System (SES) 
Request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a 
Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying 
approximately 5.63 acres. Parcel 33.027.0400. TBD CTY 9 BLVD, Goodhue, MN 55027. Part of 
the NE ¼ of Sect 27 Twp 111 Range 15 in Goodhue Township. A1 Zoned District. 
  

The Applicant was present to represent the application. 



Page - 11 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

Hanni presented the staff report and attachments.  

Wozniak read comments from Beau Kennedy regarding wetland issues. 

 “No official wetland determination has been made for this portion of the solar project. 
However, I do not forsee any wetlands present within the project area.  Also, the first facility 
constructed in 2018 and witnessed some considerable erosion problems on north facing steep 
slopes.  Developer should take steps to assure no downstream sedimentation occurs during 
and after construction.” 

Chair Pettit opened the Public Hearing. 

No one spoke for or against the request. 

13After Chair Pettit asked three times for comments, it was moved by 
Commissioner Stenerson and seconded by Commissioner Fox to close the public 
hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0  

Commissioner Fox commented on placement of this makes it so you barely see it. 

14Motion by Commissioner Nystuen seconded by Commissioner Miller, for the 
Planning Advisory Commission to: 

 Adopt the staff report into the record; 

 Accept the application, testimony, exhibits, and other evidence presented into the 
record; 

and recommend that the County Board of Commissioners APPROVE the request for a CUP 
submitted by MN 121819 LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale 
Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 5.63 
acres. 

1. Activities shall be conducted according to submitted plans, specifications, and narrative 
unless modified by a condition of this CUP;  

2. The project shall be decommissioned according to Article 19 Section 6 of the Goodhue 
County Zoning Ordinance and submitted plans; 

3. A decommissioning agreement between the landowner and MN 121819 LLC shall be 
maintained to ensure reclamation of the area; 

4. LUM staff shall be notified by the landowner or solar company 30 days prior to 
ownership transfer or operator changes; 

5. Applicants shall communicate with Beau Kennedy, Wetlands Coordinator with the 
Goodhue SWCD to ensure compliance with applicable Wetlands Rules prior to 
completion of any site grading/construction and/or submittal of the Building Permit 
Application; 

6. A stormwater management and erosion control plan shall be submitted for 
administrative review as part of the Building Permit Application for the project;  

7. Applicants shall work with the Goodhue County Soil and Water Conservation District to 
determine an appropriate seed mix to establish on disturbed areas of the site; 

8. Applicants shall obtain Building Permit approvals from the Goodhue County Land Use 
Management Department prior to establishing the use; 



Page - 12 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

9. Compliance with Goodhue County Zoning Ordinance including, but not limited to, 
Article 19 Solar Energy Systems (SES) and Article 21 (Agriculture Protection District).  
The applicant shall request a final inspection of the project for compliance with 
applicable zoning requirements upon completion of the project; 

10. Compliance with all necessary State and Federal registrations, permits, licensing, and 
regulations; 

11. This CUP shall expire 30 years from the date of approval unless terminated prior to that 
date. 

Motion carried 8:0  

5. Other discussion 
 
Discussion regarding township and county road condition to be added to the CUP applications 
and approval. 
 
Commissioner Pettit stated she would like to have a discussion going forward how to handle 
the solar arrays, stray voltage, and taking farm land out of commission.   
 
Discussion of what to include in the April 15th meeting regarding solar arrays: 
 What we’ve approved, where they are, what’s been built from what’s been approved. 
 How many are in Prime Farmland 
 Existing permits and their vicinity to feedlots 
 Decommissioning 
 Life span expansion 
  
Will set up a time for the solar panel April 15th meeting/discussion time at March meeting. 
 
15Adjourn: Moved by Commissioner Nystuen, second by Commissioner Fox, to 
adjourn the Planning Advisory Commission meeting at 8:59 PM.  
Motion carried 8:0 

Respectfully Submitted,  

Abby Breyfogle; Recording Secretary  

                                                 
1 APPROVE the PAC meeting agenda.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
2 APPROVE the previous month’s meeting minutes.  

Motion carried 8:0. 
3 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
4 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request to elevate a proposed dwelling above the 
Base Flood Elevation of a Floodplain area by means of a “tuck under” garage foundation. 

Motion carried 8:0 
5 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
6 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request the request for Preliminary and Final Plat 
approval of the proposed “Wildwood Gardens” Plat comprising approximately 56.45 acres. 
  Motion carried 8:0 
7 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  



Page - 13 - 

PLANNING COMMISSION 
GOODHUE COUNTY, MN 

February 11th, 2019 MEETING MINUTES 
DRAFT 

 

 

 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                             
Motion carried 8:0 

8 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Jonathan and Lora Luhman (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 6.65 acres. 

Motion carried 7:1 (Commissioner Fox opposed) 
9 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
10 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar 
Energy System (SES) occupying approximately 8 acres.  
 Motion carried 8:0 
11 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
12 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 LLC 
(applicant) and Andrew and Kim Huneke (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy 
System (SES) occupying approximately 10.42 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
13 Motion to close the Public Hearing.  

Motion carried 8:0 
14 Recommend the County Board of Commissioners Approve the request from for a CUP submitted by MN 121819 
LLC (applicant) and Paul Betcher (owners) for a Utility-Scale Photovoltaic Ground 1 Megawatt Solar Energy System 
(SES) occupying approximately 5.63 acres. 

Motion carried 8:0 
15 ADJOURN the Planning Commission meeting.  

Motion carried 8:0 











































  

Goodhue County Public Works 

Project Status Report for February 5, 2019 

 

ROUTE TYPE OF WORK/PROJECT LOCATION CURRENT STATUS 

 Bidding  

 Solar Request for Proposal RFP’s due February 25, 2019 by 3 P.M. 

Various 
2019 Bituminous Paving 

CSAH 12, 18, 19, 27, 62 
Proposals due March 12, 2019 by 2 P.M. 

Various 2019 Aggregate Surfacing Proposals due March 12, 2019 by 2 P.M. 

Various 2019 Traffic Marking Proposals due March 12, 2019 by 2 P.M. 

 Road Construction  

CSAH 21 
Concrete Surfacing  

TH 58 – 170’ East of Eagle Ridge Drive 

Construction completed.  Project to be finaled 

with CSAH 1 once it has been completed. 

CSAH 1 
Concrete Surfacing & FDR 

TH 60 – TH 52 

Traffic marking installed. All road surfacing 

work complete.  Turf establishment will be 

finalized next spring.  

 

 
Maintenance Department  

CR 41 
Ditch Cleaning 

CSAH 7 to TH 19 

Minor work remaining.  Work to be completed in 

the spring. 

Various Tree Trimming & Brush Removal 
Work started and will continue through the 

winter season. 

All Snow & Ice Removal To continue through the winter season. 

 Planning & Studies  

St Paul - 

Chicago 
High Speed Rail Planning (MHSRC) 

Working on a second train between the Twin 

Cities and Chicago.  River route remains the 

preferred alternative.  Commission will continue 

both its public rail advocacy and to comment on 

MnDOT’s river route process. 



ROUTE TYPE OF WORK/PROJECT LOCATION CURRENT STATUS 

Red Rock 

Corridor 
Commuter Rail Planning (RRC Commission) 

The Commission determined Bus Rapid Transit 

to be the best alternative and has adopted the 

Final Report.  An implementation plan for a 

future extension of the Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) 

line to Hastings is in planning stages. 

Zip Rail 

Rochester – 

Twin Cities 

High Speed Rail Planning (OCRRA & Mn/DOT) 

MnDOT announced their project is “shelved” 

and no further public work is to be done.  A Tier 

1 EIS was not completed.  A private firm 

analyzed the feasibility of a zip rail along the 

same alignment, but their work was non-public 

and no communication has been made by them 

for some time. 

TH 63 Mississippi River Bridge @ Red Wing (Mn/DOT) 
Construction has begun and completion is slated 

for 2020. 

TH 63 Mississippi River Bridge @ Red Wing (Mn/DOT) 
Construction has begun and completion is slated 

for 2020. 

 



The following is a summary of the claims to be reviewed 

and approved at the February 19,2019 board meeting: 

    

01 General Fund  $       395,295.34   
03 Public Works  $       691,184.99   
11 Human Service Fund  $       129,531.98   
21 ISTS  $                       -     
25 EDA  $              282.54   
30 Capital Improvement  $                       -     
31 Capital Equipment  $                       -     
34 Capital Equipment   $         71,536.01   
35 Debt Service  $                       -     
40 County Ditch  $                       -     
61 Waste Management  $         15,108.31   
62 Recycling Center  $                       -     
63 HHW  $                       -     
72 Other Agency  $         90,464.89   
81 Settlement  $       161,077.33   

 Totals  $   1,554,481.39   
    

    

    

 GROSS PAYROLL   (including Employer Related Tax Payments) 

    

 Period Ending Paid Date Amount 

 1/25/2019 2/7/2019  $    1,016,924.83  

    

 Checks (WFXX,WFXX-ACH)  $         1,067,621.93   

 EFT (Manual Warrants)  $            486,859.46   

 Total:  $         1,554,481.39   
 



tswanson

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

 1:43PM02/06/2019

 11481  11506

 18,299.72  0

 3,368.26  0

 10,591.91  0

 207.69  0

32,467.58 11481

32,467.58  4

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Manual Warrants

Warr #
Alerus Financial

01-000-000-2504-20052/7/19 Payroll-Co HSA Contrib

03-000-000-2504-20052/7/19 Payroll-Co HSA Contrib

11-000-000-2504-20052/7/19 Payroll-Co HSA Contrib

61-000-000-2504-20052/7/19 Payroll-Co HSA Contrib

Date 2/7/19TotalWarrant #

Total... Transactions

Goodhue County

Final



tswanson

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

 1:43PM02/06/2019
Page 2

Warr #

Goodhue County

AMOUNT

18,299.721

3,368.263

10,591.9111

207.6961

32,467.58

RECAP BY FUND FUND NAME

County General Revenue

County Road and Bridge

Health & Human Service Fund

Waste Management Facilities

TOTAL



CMARCUS

Vendor #

-

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:06AM02/13/2019

 11486  1820

 186.23  0

 1.44  0

 314.89  0

 23.90  0

 4.46  0

 0.69  0

 9.79  0

 9.07  0

 0.53  0

-0.50  0

 26.40  0

 209.10  0

786.00 11486

786.00  12

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Manual Warrants

Warr #
State Of Minnesota-Sales & Use Tax

01-000-000-0000-2196Receipt Nbr 424483 01/18/2019

01-105-000-0000-6302Receipt Nbr 424523 01/18/2019

01-207-240-0000-5852Receipt Nbr 424759 01/31/2019

01-207-240-0000-5859Receipt Nbr 424759 01/31/2019

01-601-000-0000-6232Receipt Nbr 424425 01/16/2019

01-601-000-0000-6405Receipt Nbr 424406 01/15/2019

61-398-000-0000-6307Warr Nbr 27079 01/11/2019

61-398-000-0000-6411Warr Nbr 27079 01/11/2019

61-398-000-0000-6563Warr Nbr 442724 01/04/2019

01-001-000-0000-6850Rounding adjustment 1/2019

61-000-000-0000-2222SW Assmt 1/2019

61-000-000-0000-2223SW Mgmnt 1/2019

Date 2/19/19TotalWarrant #

Total... Transactions

Goodhue County

Final



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:06AM02/13/2019
Page 2

Warr #

Goodhue County

AMOUNT

531.111

254.8961

786.00

RECAP BY FUND FUND NAME

County General Revenue

Waste Management Facilities

TOTAL



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:29AM02/13/2019

 11482  27161

 27.24  0

27.24 11482

27.24  1

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Manual Warrants

Warr #
Minnesota Revenue

11-479-478-0000-62462018 Provider Tax 8026628

Date 2/11/19TotalWarrant #

Total... Transactions

Goodhue County

Final



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:29AM02/13/2019
Page 2

Warr #

Goodhue County

AMOUNT

27.2411

27.24

RECAP BY FUND FUND NAME

Health & Human Service Fund

TOTAL



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:29AM02/13/2019

 11484  3796

 49,686.95  0

 40,777.94  0

90,464.89 11484

90,464.89  2

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Manual Warrants

Warr #
Department Of Revenue

72-850-000-0000-2310State share deed tax 1/2019

72-850-000-0000-2311State share mtg tax 1/2019

Date 2/19/19TotalWarrant #

Total... Transactions

Goodhue County

Final



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:29AM02/13/2019
Page 2

Warr #

Goodhue County

AMOUNT

90,464.8972

90,464.89

RECAP BY FUND FUND NAME

Other Agency Funds

TOTAL



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:29AM02/13/2019

 11485  4239

 8,325.00  0

 194,570.50  0

 36,769.00  0

 117,243.50  0

 4,642.50  0

361,550.50 11485

361,550.50  5

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Manual Warrants

Warr #
Southeast Service Cooperative

01-000-000-9001-2020Retirees,COBRA 2/2019

01-000-000-9002-2020Health Ins 2/2019 190102065405

03-000-000-9002-2020Health Ins 2/2019 190102065405

11-000-000-9002-2020Health Ins 2/2019 190102065405

61-000-000-9002-2020Health Ins 2/2019 190102065405

Date 2/1/19TotalWarrant #

Total... Transactions

Goodhue County

Final



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:29AM02/13/2019
Page 2

Warr #

Goodhue County

AMOUNT

202,895.501

36,769.003

117,243.5011

4,642.5061

361,550.50

RECAP BY FUND FUND NAME

County General Revenue

County Road and Bridge

Health & Human Service Fund

Waste Management Facilities

TOTAL



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:32AM02/13/2019

 11487  11872

 985.71  0

 111.95  0

 43.05  0

 154.99  0

 43.05  0

 77.50  0

1,416.25 11487

1,416.25  6

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Manual Warrants

Warr #
Intellicents

01-061-000-0000-6278Consulting 2/2019

11-420-600-0010-6283Consulting 2/2019

11-420-640-0010-6283Consulting 2/2019

11-430-700-0010-6283Consulting 2/2019

11-479-478-0000-6283Consulting 2/2019

11-479-479-0000-6283Consulting 2/2019

Date 2/15/19TotalWarrant #

Total... Transactions

Goodhue County

Final



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:32AM02/13/2019
Page 2

Warr #

Goodhue County

AMOUNT

985.711

430.5411

1,416.25

RECAP BY FUND FUND NAME

County General Revenue

Health & Human Service Fund

TOTAL



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:15AM02/15/2019

 11488  1512

 147.00  0

147.00 11488

147.00  1

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Manual Warrants

Warr #
Alliance Benefit Group

01-061-000-0000-6278COBRA 1/2019 c75593

Date 2/20/19TotalWarrant #

Total... Transactions

Goodhue County

Final



CMARCUS

Vendor #

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

11:15AM02/15/2019
Page 2

Warr #

Goodhue County

AMOUNT

147.001

147.00

RECAP BY FUND FUND NAME

County General Revenue

TOTAL



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N

N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N
N

N

N

N
Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

35.98 3909

33.79 12203

393.95 301

109.45 1353

439.45 1353

631.93 1353

282.48 1353

183.68 1353

1,947.34 1353

780.86 1353

319.09 9090

41.98 9090

5.70 9090

11.32 9090

22.55 9090

22.55 9090

64.40 9090

18.50 1078

100.00 1078

849.48 1078

660.48 1078

39.81 1078

270.00 9828

28,808.90 1140

48.59 11439

35.98 443237

33.79 443238

393.95 443239

4,375.19 443240

487.59 443241

1,668.27 443242

270.00 443243

28,808.90 443244

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

03-310-000-0000-6508Ace Hardware Zumbrota Propane Patching 31251/Z

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6562Advance Auto Parts Brake Pads 0807 2053366662

Total...Warrant #

01-001-000-0000-6402Advanced Business Systems, Inc Ink ctdgs, tapes  11/30/18 92619

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6420Ag Partners Coop Washer Fluid 760977

03-340-000-0000-6420Antifreeze RW 55g 760982

03-340-000-0000-65615W30 RW 57.5g 760977

03-340-000-0000-656115W40 Zta 32.1g 760977

03-340-000-0000-6565DEF RW 112g 760977

03-340-000-0000-6565Winter Diesel Kyn 764.7g 818421

03-340-000-0000-6565Winter Diesel Kyn 315.5g 818435

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6420Auto Value - Red Wing Hyd Fittings 134106653

03-340-000-0000-6561Eng Oil 1206 134106258

03-340-000-0000-6562Clevis 8602 134106706

03-340-000-0000-6562Push Button Switch 0801 134106989

03-340-000-0000-6562Air Dryer Cart 0602 134106991

03-340-000-0000-6562Air Dryer Cart 0801 134106991

03-340-000-0000-6563Hyd Hose Fittings 1708 134106414

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6420Bauer Built Tire Center Lug Nut Torque Chart 680043590

03-340-000-0000-6562Rims (4) 0601 680043679

03-340-000-0000-6575Tires (6) 1104 680043619

03-340-000-0000-6575Tires (4) 0804 680043620

61-398-000-0000-6575Tire Rpr 7021 680043423

Total...Warrant #

01-255-000-0000-6382BCA - MNJIS Section CJDN connect chgs Q418 520953

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Cannon Falls Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

01-281-280-0000-6201Century Link Phone:Sandhill twr 1/19-2/18 6513882865

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N

N
N
N
N
N

- N
N
N

- N
- N

N
N

- N
N
N

- N
- N
- N

N
N
N
N
N

N
N

N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

282.54 5050

1,720.64 10432

12,312.62 10432

7,352.64 10432

2,001.52 10432

4,025.68 10432

97.10 10432

5,965.64 10432

7,679.73 10432

100.00 10432

152.44 10432

5,702.20 10432

1,939.97 10432

271.60 10432

7,878.96 10432

5,777.45 10432

390.12 10432

89.64 10432

162.73 10432

18.16 1226

7.72 1226

107.67 1226

7.73 1226

7.72 1226

9,154.68 12768

2,945.76 12768

1,519.00 9339

160.00 4644

48.59 443245

282.54 443246

61,093.42 443247

149.00 443248

12,100.44 443249

1,519.00 443250

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 2Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

25-700-000-0000-6278Community And Economic Devel Assoc Prof svc 1/2019

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6506Compass Minerals America Salt RW 24.32T 382389

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt RW 174.03T 384567

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt Zta 98.35T 384571

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt RW 28.29T 387828

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt RW 56.9T 388899

03-310-000-0000-6506Deduct Moist #9802640 390142

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt RW 84.32T 390142

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt Kyn 102.41T 390144

03-310-000-0000-6506Deduct Moist #9802653 390144

03-310-000-0000-6506Deduct Moist #9802652 390144

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt CF 80.29T 391702

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt RW 27.42T 392803

03-310-000-0000-6506Deduct Moist #9802716 392803

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt CF 110.94T 392804

03-310-000-0000-6506Salt RW 81.66T 393612

03-310-000-0000-6506Deduct Moist #9020692 393612

03-310-000-0000-6506Deduct Moist #9020693 393612

03-310-000-0000-6506Deduct Moist #9802703 393612

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6251Dakota Electric Assoc St Lts #46 21366814

03-310-000-0000-6251St Lts #19 21366814

03-310-000-0000-6251St Lts #18 21366814

03-310-000-0000-6251St Lts #7 21366814

03-310-000-0000-6251St Lts #31 21366814

Total...Warrant #

01-209-000-0000-6480Dell Marketing Lp (4) Computers 1/18/19 10295092582

34-091-000-0000-6480(2) computers:AC,JK 1/17/19 10292748740

Total...Warrant #

01-103-000-0000-6268Dlt Solutions Inc Raster Gov maint plan 19-20 si420215

Total...Warrant #

61-398-000-0000-6283Express Services, Inc. 1/17 RC Temp 21791627

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N

N
N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

- N
N
N
N

N

N
N

N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

160.00 4644

160.00 4644

160.00 4644

160.00 4644

80.00 4644

40.00 4644

160.00 4644

40.00 11674

33.69 12773

29.90 12773

60.40 8869

82.52 8869

147.94 8869

329.01 8869

148.03 8869

45.91 8869

94.73 8869

50.00 8869

6.01 8869

6.01 8869

129.00 8869

93.55 13061

891.00 4377

720.00 4377

887.06 1881

1,644.76 6901

1,080.00 443251

40.00 443252

63.59 443253

999.56 443254

93.55 443255

1,611.00 443256

887.06 443257

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 3Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

61-398-000-0000-6283Express Services, Inc. 1/16 RC Temp 21791627

61-398-000-0000-62831/18 RC Temp 21791627

61-398-000-0000-62831/24 RC Temp 21827220

61-398-000-0000-62831/22 RC Temp 21827220

61-398-000-0000-62831/21 RC Temp 21827220

61-398-000-0000-62831/21 RC Temp OT 21827220

61-398-000-0000-62831/23 RC Temp 21827220

Total...Warrant #

01-111-110-0000-6420Fab 1 Welding LLC Plates for desks 2/4/19 2083

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6504Fastenal Company Fasteners Trucks Hauling Sign MNRED138590

03-340-000-0000-6562Ball Valves (4) Stock MNRED138621

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6420FleetPride Pawl Assembly (4) 17615314

03-340-000-0000-6420Clevis Kits (4) 17615314

03-340-000-0000-6562Brake Chambers 8602 17615314

03-340-000-0000-6562Air Dryer 8602 17615314

03-340-000-0000-6562Suspension Valve 8602 17953454

03-340-000-0000-6562Oil Seal 0601 19357872

03-340-000-0000-6562Brake shoes 0601 19357872

03-340-000-0000-6562Cr Core Return 0601 19430702

03-340-000-0000-6562Axle Seal 0601 19565845

03-340-000-0000-6562Axel Seal Stock 19565848

03-340-000-0000-6569Air to Air Tester 19358148

Total...Warrant #

03-350-000-0000-6253Flom Disposal Garbage Kyn 2/1-4/30 6228

Total...Warrant #

03-320-000-0000-6268Frontier Precision Inc Survey Control Maint 188467

03-320-000-0000-6268Survey GPS Annual Maint 188467

Total...Warrant #

61-399-192-0000-6838Green Lights Recycling Inc Bulb Disposal 190098

Total...Warrant #

01-111-113-0000-6305Gs Distributing Plumbing parts 1/30/19 5775

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N

N
N
N
N

N
N

N
N

N
N
N
N

N
N

N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

208.80 13267

49.36 2630

51.36 2630

51.36 2630

47.36 2630

4,597.94 2911

711.93 2911

389.28 2310

301.76 2310

23.19 3972

23.19 3972

23.19 3972

10.96 3972

120.00 11873

37.00 11873

103.94 1493

103.94 1493

78.22 1493

52.51 1493

181.09 1493

172.31 13176

51.35 13176

21.63 13176

63.00 13176

1,644.76 443258

208.80 443259

199.44 443260

5,309.87 443261

691.04 443262

80.53 443263

157.00 443264

519.70 443265

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 4Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

03-320-000-0000-6357Hauser/Aksel MIleage Reimb 1/23-25/19 Reimb Mileage

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6304Herc-U-Lift CO Check 7180 W394148

61-398-000-0000-6304CO Check #7086 W394611

61-398-000-0000-6304CO Check #7022 W394780

61-398-000-0000-6304CO Check #7021 W400214

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6502Holst Excavating Inc De-icing Sand Del 537.77T 487665

03-310-000-0000-6502De-icing Sand 171.55T 487675

Total...Warrant #

01-111-000-0000-6307Huebsch Linen Uniforms 1/2019 62210

01-111-110-0000-6347Mops,rugs 1/2019 34980

Total...Warrant #

01-101-000-0000-6405Innovative Office Solutions Llc Wireless kybd,mouse 1/24/19 2376309

01-105-000-0000-6405Wireless kybd,mouse 1/24/19 2376309

01-127-129-0000-6405Wireless kybd,mouse 1/24/19 2376309

01-255-000-0000-6405Staples,batteries 1/24/19 2377160

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6511J and M Chainsaws Chainsaw-EFCO 157218

03-310-000-0000-6511Chainsaw chain (2)/File 157222

Total...Warrant #

61-398-192-0000-6566Lakes Gas Co LP-Jan 1461991

61-398-192-0000-6566LP-Jan 1461998

61-398-192-0000-6566LP-Jan 1462007

61-398-192-0000-6566LP-Jan 1462016

61-398-192-0000-6566LP-Jan 2354583

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6420Lawson Products Inc. Fasteners 9306409848

03-340-000-0000-6420Earplugs 9306428597

03-340-000-0000-6420Fasteners 9306428597

03-340-000-0000-6562Plow Bolts 9306409848

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N

N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

178.00 1531

126.64 1531

55.41 1531

770.13 7584

918.75 12655

39.31 7919

4.32 7919

37.08 7919

39.88 7919

31.40 7919

82.20 7919

39.80 7919

21.30 7919

5.94 7919

590.06 8522

505.84 8522

4.00 8522

2,122.00 8522

1,676.00 8522

4,512.00 8522

978.00 8522

3,084.00 8522

22.00 8522

26.00 8522

152.00 8522

104.00 8522

314.00 8522

60.00 8522

186.00 8522

122.00 8522

308.29 443266

360.05 443267

770.13 443268

918.75 443269

301.23 443270

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 5Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6502Luhman Construction Co Inc Icing Rock 22.49cy 11537

03-310-000-0000-6502Icing Rock #46 16cy 11537

03-310-000-0000-6502Icing Rock #41 7cy 11537

Total...Warrant #

03-350-000-0000-6252Matthees Oil Inc LP-CF 103252

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6272Mayo Clinic ER:Karlen 9/9/18 1738321

Total...Warrant #

01-103-000-0000-6412Menards-Red Wing Survey supplies 1/18/19 41375

03-310-000-0000-6504Fasteners-Trucks Hauling Signs 40948

03-310-000-0000-6504Drill Bits/Tools Sign Shop 40948

03-310-000-0000-6508Mailboxes Stock 40795

03-310-000-0000-6511Chainsaw Bar Oil 40795

03-340-000-0000-6565Diesel Additive 41683

03-340-000-0000-6565Diesel Additive 41983

03-350-000-0000-6305Wash Bay Prep Supplies 41697

03-350-000-0000-6420Brk Rm Cleaning Supplies 41697

Total...Warrant #

03-350-000-0000-6252Minnesota Energy Resources Corp Gas-Zta Shop 504254044-1

03-350-000-0000-6252Gas-Kyn Shop 504254044-2

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 52.999.0700

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 52.999.0715

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 66.999.0910

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 68.999.0430

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 70.999.0330

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 72.999.0760

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2015 28.999.0238

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2015 38.999.0200

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2015 52.999.0715

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2015 66.999.0910

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2015 68.999.0430

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2015 70.999.0330

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2015 72.999.0760

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2016 28.999.0238

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

140.00 8522

6.00 8522

4.00 8522

904.00 8522

614.00 8522

1,942.00 8522

342.00 8522

1,126.00 8522

1,300.00 8522

2.00 8522

1,546.00 8522

4.00 8522

6.00 8522

78.00 8522

40.00 8522

4.00 8522

10,542.00 8522

6,946.00 8522

21,054.00 8522

3,706.00 8522

12,916.00 8522

1,462.00 8522

2.00 8522

1,832.00 8522

4.00 8522

6.00 8522

88.00 8522

46.00 8522

4.00 8522

14,240.00 8522

8,770.00 8522

25,744.00 8522

4,640.00 8522

15,502.00 8522

2,470.44 8522

129.15 8522

568.71 8522

4,033.33 8522

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 6Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

81-850-000-0000-2106Minnesota Energy Resources Corp TAX COURT 2016 38.999.0200

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2016 40.999.0095

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2016 41.999.0100

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2016 52.999.0715

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2016 66.999.0910

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2016 68.999.0430

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2016 70.999.0330

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2016 72.999.0760

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 28.999.0238

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 36.999.0105

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 38.999.0200

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 38.999.0300

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 39.999.0100

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 40.999.0095

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 41.999.0100

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 47.999.0200

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 52.999.0715

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 66.999.0910

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 68.999.0430

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 70.999.0330

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2017 72.999.0760

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 28.999.0238

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 36.999.0105

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 38.999.0200

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 38.999.0300

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 39.999.0100

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 40.999.0095

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 41.999.0100

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 47.999.0200

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 52.999.0715

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 66.999.0910

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 68.999.0430

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 70.999.0330

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2018 72.999.0760

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT INTEREST 2014

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT INTEREST 2015

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT INTEREST 2016

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT INTEREST 2017

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N

N
N

N

N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

2,124.48 8522

228.00 8522

402.00 8522

4.00 8522

22.00 8522

6.00 8522

465.00 4948

465.00 4948

149.00 11766

122.43 7633

64.59 7633

123.30 7633

109.59 7633

246.62 7633

279.95 7633

132.20 7633

85.29 9516

79.95 9516

24.54 2864

6.66 2864

711.49 5828

75.00 13326

315.00 9146

160,008.01 443271

930.00 443272

149.00 443273

1,078.68 443274

165.24 443275

31.20 443276

711.49 443277

75.00 443278

315.00 443279

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 7Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

81-850-000-0000-2106Minnesota Energy Resources Corp TAX COURT INTEREST 2018

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 28.999.0238

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 38.999.0200

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 38.999.0300

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 40.999.0095

81-850-000-0000-2106TAX COURT 2014 41.999.0100

Total...Warrant #

01-207-000-0000-6357Mn Sheriffs Assn Jail Academy:Anderson 3/2019 181600

01-207-000-0000-6357Jail Academy:Stephans 3/2019 181560

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6283Novak Weather Consultants Light Pack Weather Cons 224

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6562Nuss Truck and Equipment Group LLC Headlight Switch 1201 1182517P

03-340-000-0000-6562Control Unit 1201 1182517P

03-340-000-0000-6562Trans Cover Plates 0602 7129015P

03-340-000-0000-6562DPF Sensor 1101 7129020P

03-340-000-0000-6562Solenoid Valve/Elbow 0801 7129487P

03-340-000-0000-6562Mack Starter for Stock 7130080P

03-340-000-0000-6562Blower Motor 1202 7130139P

Total...Warrant #

03-350-000-0000-6201Nuvera (FKA NU-Telecom) Tele CF 1182424

03-350-000-0000-6209DSL CF 1182424

Total...Warrant #

01-105-000-0000-6405Office Depot File guides,tabs 1/16/19 259724175001

01-127-129-0000-6405Note pads 1/16/19 259725078001

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6278Olmsted County TH 52 Partnership TH52 2018

Total...Warrant #

01-201-238-0000-6850Peine/Alexander L. Refund fee 1/2019

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6270Precise MRM LLC GPS Data Svc Dec (9) 1019936

Total...Warrant #

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N

N

N

N

N

N
N

N
N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

35.77 5136

22.32 582

27.66 582

75.30 582

34.59 582

177.64 582

46.42 582

13.23 582

340.52 582

142.17 582

200.00 12545

883.20 12545

75.00 12545

159.54 12260

28,804.06 1756

25.00 3757

298.29 59303

193.95 9875

193.95 9875

1,990.00 926

2,685.00 926

62.35 6450

35.77 443280

879.85 443281

1,158.20 443282

159.54 443283

28,804.06 443284

25.00 443285

298.29 443286

387.90 443287

4,675.00 443288

62.35 443289

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 8Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

01-201-000-0000-6253Red Wing City-Public Works Wash bay:Shrf shed 12/2018 11876.000

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6420Rihm Kenworth Cleaner 2023677A

03-340-000-0000-6562HVAC Pts 0705 2021722A

03-340-000-0000-6562Filters for Stock 2021774A

03-340-000-0000-6562Filters for Stock 2021791A

03-340-000-0000-6562Brake Chmbrs Stock 2022778A

03-340-000-0000-6562Filters for Stock 2022789A

03-340-000-0000-6562Filters for Stock 2023573A

03-340-000-0000-6562Brake Chambers Stock 2023677A

03-340-000-0000-6562Filters for Stock 2023802A

Total...Warrant #

01-005-000-0000-6242Rivertown Multimedia 11/18/18 Com Proc 1/16/19 2717467

01-041-000-0000-6242Exp of Redemption 1/19-1/26 1823987

01-041-000-0000-62422017 Summary finl stmt 10/6/18 2687387

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6562Ronco Engineering Sales Co, Inc Spinner Motor Stock 3156952

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Roscoe Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-521-000-0000-6243Se Mn Area Rec Trails - Smart SMART Membership 2019 mbrshp

Total...Warrant #

03-350-000-0000-6305Sherwin Williams Paint-Oil Rm Zta Shop 6809-9

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6562Silver Star Industries Seat Cover 1206 WHLS6339301

03-340-000-0000-6562Seat Cover 1104 WHLS6339301

Total...Warrant #

01-101-101-0000-6268Sitecomp Inc 2019 renewal 2019-2190

01-103-000-0000-62682019 renewal 2019-2190

Total...Warrant #

01-101-000-0000-6405Staples Advantage Supplies 1/16/19 3402216794

Total...Warrant #

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N

N
N

N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N

N

N

N
N
N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

10.00 3687

10.00 3687

740.00 6284

2,520.00 6284

9.99 1831

9.99 1831

593.87 1831

749.86 1831

184.76 2469

135.51 2469

11.05 2469

75.86 2469

2.35 2469

216.93 2469

238.36 2469

157.64 2469

244.85 2469

35.79 2513

12,000.00 67599

227.89 11634

96.87 1876

63.47 1876

186.78 1876

33,866.15 1878

20.00 443290

3,260.00 443291

1,363.71 443292

1,267.31 443293

35.79 443294

12,000.00 443295

227.89 443296

347.12 443297

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 9Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

61-398-000-0000-6417State Of Minnesota Safety Decals-JF 2019-RC

61-398-000-0000-6417Safety Decals-GG 2019-RC

Total...Warrant #

61-397-000-0000-6343Steberg/Glen Landfill Equip Jan Jan-19

61-397-000-0000-6349Landfill Hrs Jan Jan-19

Total...Warrant #

01-207-000-0000-6453Streichers Inc Nameplate:KAnderson 1/24/19 i1350174

01-207-000-0000-6453Nameplate:DStephans 1/24/19 i1350173

01-207-000-0000-6453Initl uniforms:KAnderson 1/23 i1350027

01-207-000-0000-6453Initl uniforms:DStephans 1/23 i1349823

Total...Warrant #

01-041-000-0000-6302Toshiba Financial Services (L.A.) Copier 2/2019 69294743

01-201-000-0000-6302Copier 2/2019 90136754017

01-201-000-0000-6302Copies 12/2018 90136754017

01-201-000-0000-6302Patrol copier 2/2019 90136821769

01-201-000-0000-6302Patrol copies 12/2018 90136821769

01-207-000-0000-6302Admin copier 2/2019 90136753990

01-207-000-0000-6302Intake copier 2/2019 90136754033

01-207-000-0000-6302Intake copies 12/2018 90136754033

01-255-000-0000-6302Copier 2/2019 90136736498

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6563Tri State Bobcat Inc Pin 1702 P05579

Total...Warrant #

01-001-000-0000-6203United States Postal Service Postage for meter

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6302US Bank Equipment Finance Copier Lease 02/19 377201546

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6420Van Paper Company Wypall Wipers 489441-00

03-340-000-0000-6420Wypall Wipers 489441-01

03-350-000-0000-6420Towels/Liners/TP/TBC 489441-00

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Vasa Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

25.56 3418

105.83 3418

70.02 3418

17.86 3418

17.86 3418

35.01 3418

35.01 3418

17.15 3418

17.15 3418

70.02 3418

19.02 3418

35.01 3418

35.01 3418

35.01 3418

12.78 3418

4.13 3418

4.07 3418

3.83 3418

8.95 3418

9.63 3418

9.49 3418

1,584.89 1903

2,635.11 73383

2,442.86 73383

10,085.15 73383

9,529.61 73383

1,905.20 73383

951.08 73383

3,483.75 73383

33.92 73383

28.87 73383

27.57 73383

310.07 73383

33,866.15 443298

588.40 443299

1,584.89 443300

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 10Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

01-055-000-0000-6202Verizon Wireless Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

01-055-000-0000-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

01-103-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 98230858735

11-420-600-0010-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-420-600-0010-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-420-600-0010-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-420-600-0010-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-430-700-0010-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-430-700-0010-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-430-700-0010-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-463-463-0000-6202Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-463-463-0000-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-463-463-0000-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-463-463-0000-6206Data cards 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-466-450-0000-6202TANF Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-479-478-0000-6202Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-479-478-0000-6202Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-479-479-0000-6202Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-479-479-0000-6202Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-479-479-0000-6202Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

11-479-479-0000-6202Cell phone 1/27-2/26/19 9823088714

Total...Warrant #

01-025-000-0000-6452West Payment Center Law books 12/5-1/4/19 839620724

Total...Warrant #

01-111-110-0000-6251Xcel Energy Electric 1/2019 5156476998

01-111-110-0000-6252Gas 1/2019 5150574326

01-111-112-0000-6251Electric 1/2019 5143459081

01-111-112-0000-6252Gas 1/2019 5160612755

01-111-115-0000-6251Electric 1/2019 5162198585

01-111-115-0000-6252Gas 1/2019 5162198585

01-111-116-0000-6251Electric 1/2019 5154533778

03-310-000-0000-6251St Lts - 24 51-104672901

03-310-000-0000-6251St Lts - 2N 51-57625991

03-310-000-0000-6251St Lts - 2S 51-60402524

03-310-000-0000-6251Signals - 601 Bench 51-67548181

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N

N

N

N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

103.36 73383

136.19 73383

1,283.48 73383

431.44 73383

508.26 73383

1,718.17 73383

11.32 73383

18.06 73383

1,359.60 11965

1,248.74 1914

1,817.50 8329

49.80 1919

45.04 1919

63.95 1919

35,643.47 443301

1,359.60 443302

1,248.74 443303

1,817.50 443304

158.79 443305

422,249.95  287

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 11Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

03-310-000-0000-6251Xcel Energy St Lts - Bench 51-67548181

03-350-000-0000-6251Elec - RW Shared 51-101960186

03-350-000-0000-6251Elec - RW 51-51300497

03-350-000-0000-6251Electric - Zta 51-63907713

03-350-000-0000-6252Gas - RW Shared 51-101960186

03-350-000-0000-6252Gas - RW 51-53157485

03-521-000-0000-6251Elec - Park Well 51-52934882

03-521-000-0000-6251Sec Lt - Park 51-73725269

Total...Warrant #

61-397-000-0000-6839Zemke Trucking LLC Landfill Disp-Jan 1317

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6563Ziegler Inc Gearbox 1708 PC100167119

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6272Zumbrota Area Ambulance Ambulance:Karlen 9/9/18 AA281

Total...Warrant #

03-350-000-0000-6201Zumbrota Telephone Co Tele 5671 Zta 104516

03-350-000-0000-6201Fax 4046 Zta 652291

03-350-000-0000-6209DSL 5671 Zta 104516

Total...Warrant #

Warrant Form Total... TransactionsWFXX

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

N
N
T
T

N

N

N

N

Department Of Transportation-State of MN N
N

N

N

N

N

N

N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

57.70 2313

44.10 2313

183.56 2313

153.65 2313

23,937.86 1085

22,264.88 1088

21,836.99 1164

520.38 8587

1,156.13 1188

169.72 1188

26,178.25 1289

37,445.59 1296

1,100.00 11027

23,156.68 1356

30,651.97 1386

22,029.79 1402

20,194.43 1462

439.01 27322

23,937.86 27323

22,264.88 27324

21,836.99 27325

520.38 27326

1,325.85 27327

26,178.25 27328

37,445.59 27329

1,100.00 27330

23,156.68 27331

30,651.97 27332

22,029.79 27333

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 12Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

03-340-000-0000-6307Aramark Uniform Services Inc Uniforms Mech 792562791

03-340-000-0000-6420Shop Rags 792562791

61-398-000-0000-6307Uniforms 792562791

61-398-000-0000-6411Mats/Towels 792562791

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Belle Creek Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Belvidere Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Cherry Grove Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

01-063-000-0000-6268D & T Ventures LLC Web tax sujpport 2/1/19 299268

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6278Mat'l Testing 019-001 P9981

03-320-000-0000-6287Mat'l Testing 601-037 P9981

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Featherstone Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Florence Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6305GFI Cleaning Services Janitorial Service-Jan 1211

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Goodhue Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Hay Creek Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Holden Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Kenyon Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N

N

N

T

N

N
N
N

N

N
- N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

6.30 3124

147.24 3124

9.00 3124

353.81 3124

17.45 3124

36.00 3124

1,216.52 3124

3,736.23 3124

168.11 3124

27,743.74 1514

690.71 44

24,213.35 824

90.99 15441

720.00 503

7.20 7885

299.95 7885

36.48 7885

21,241.40 1702

382.74 50750

35.00 50750

27,449.91 1809

20,194.43 27334

5,690.66 27335

27,743.74 27336

690.71 27337

24,213.35 27338

90.99 27339

720.00 27340

343.63 27341

21,241.40 27342

347.74 27343

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 13Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

01-103-000-0000-6303Kwik Trip Inc Maint 1/2019 278333

01-103-000-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278333

01-127-127-0000-6303Maint 1/2019 278333

01-127-127-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278333

01-127-129-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278333

01-130-000-0000-6303Maint 1/2019 278333

01-130-000-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278333

03-340-000-0000-6565Diesel 1/2019 278333

03-340-000-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278333

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Leon Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

01-063-000-0000-6302Marco Technologies LLC HP printer support 1/27-2/26 5984622

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Minneola Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

61-398-000-0000-6420Mississippi Welders Supply Co Inc Welding Gas 2873539

Total...Warrant #

01-063-000-0000-6278Mjs Security Inc Prof svc 1/24/19 1901316

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6511Niebur Tractor & Equipment Inc Chsw Gas/Oil Cap 01-121550

03-310-000-0000-6511Stihl MS250 Chainsaw 01-121552

03-310-000-0000-6511Chnsw Carb Box Cover 01-121998

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Pine Island Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

01-255-000-0000-6285Rs Eden Drug testing,supplies 12/2018 61939

01-255-000-0000-6285Credit:test billed incorrectly 61938

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Stanton Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



PONCELET

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

N
N

N

N

N

N

N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019

1,250.00 21815

1,650.00 21815

15,106.64 1884

21,977.74 1893

28,466.86 1895

28,565.55 1900

24,516.26 1920

80.40 8381

27,449.91 27344

2,900.00 27345

15,106.64 27346

21,977.74 27347

28,466.86 27348

28,565.55 27349

24,516.26 27350

80.40 27351

461,227.26  46

883,477.21  333

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 14Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

01-011-000-0000-6271Vogel & Gorman Plc Prof svc:Margaret 12/2018 36795

01-011-000-0000-6271Prof svc:Richard 12/2018 36794

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Wacouta Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Wanamingo Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Warsaw Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Welch Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-330-000-0000-6845Zumbrota Township Town Rd Allotment 2019

Total...Warrant #

03-350-000-0000-6253Zumbrota Water & Sewer Dept Wtr & Swr 8660

Total...Warrant #

Warrant Form Total... TransactionsWFXX-ACH

Total... Transactions

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County

Final



PONCELET

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019
Page 15ApprovedWARRANT REGISTER

Auditor's Warrants Auditor Warrants Pay Date

Goodhue County

422,249.95  443305 02/08/2019 02/08/2019 69  443237

461,227.26  27351 02/08/2019 02/08/2019 520.38 460,706.88 30  27322

883,477.21

WARRANT RUN WARRANT STARTING DATE OF DATE OF

FORM WARRANT NO. PAYMENT APPROVAL

PPD CTX

COUNT AMOUNT COUNT AMOUNTWARRANT NO.

ENDING

INFORMATION

WFXX

WFXX-ACH

TOTAL

 29 1



PONCELET

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/08/2019
02/08/2019

 9:28AM02/08/2019
Page 16ApprovedWARRANT REGISTER

Auditor's Warrants Auditor Warrants Pay Date

Goodhue County

 1

 3

 11

 25

 34

 61

 81

Health & Human Service Fund

Economic Development Authority

78,000.86 71,035.716,965.15

635,204.50 181,370.59453,833.91

386.99 386.99

282.54 282.54

2,945.76 2,945.76

7,744.45 7,316.25428.20

158,912.11 158,912.11

883,477.21 461,227.26 422,249.95

RECAP BY FUND

FUND AMOUNT NAME ACH AMOUNT NON-ACH AMOUNT

County General Revenue

County Road and Bridge

-

-

Capital Plan -

Waste Management Facilities

Settlement Fund -

TOTAL TOTAL ACH TOTAL NON-ACH



anderson

WFXXWarrant Form

N

- N
N

N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

315.00 10315

100.03 1353

2,585.80 1353

36.54 9329

36.00 7440

0.25 11439

1.62 11439

1.62 11439

61.11 11439

398.42 11439

398.42 11439

5.10 11439

33.27 11439

33.27 11439

1.62 11439

10.55 11439

10.55 11439

6.47 11439

42.19 11439

42.19 11439

1.74 11439

11.36 11439

11.36 11439

4.23 11439

27.59 11439

27.59 11439

66.00 5641

17,000.00 11865

315.00 443338

2,485.77 443339

36.54 443340

36.00 443341

1,130.52 443342

66.00 443343

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 1Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

01-201-000-0000-6303Advanced Graphix Inc #1726 graphics 2/5/19 201164

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6565Ag Partners Coop Duel Disc Kyn 805364

03-340-000-0000-6565Winter Deisel Kyn 1000.3g 805364

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6201Bevcomm PI office phone 2/2019 12271901

Total...Warrant #

01-127-127-0000-6244Cannon Falls Beacon 2019 subscription 92659

Total...Warrant #

01-025-000-0000-6201Century Link PS ALI 2/2019 612e310008

01-025-000-0000-6201PRI 2/2019 612e310215

01-025-000-0000-6201PRI 2/2019 612e100569

01-063-000-0000-6201PS ALI 2/2019 612e310008

01-063-000-0000-6201PRI 2/2019 612e310215

01-063-000-0000-6201PRI 2/2019 612e100569

11-420-600-0010-6201PS ALI 2/2019 612e310008

11-420-600-0010-6201PRI 2/2019 612e310215

11-420-600-0010-6201PRI 2/2019 612e100569

11-420-640-0010-6201PS ALI 2/2019 612e310008

11-420-640-0010-6201PRI 2/2019 612e310215

11-420-640-0010-6201PRI 2/2019 612e100569

11-430-700-0010-6201PS ALI 2/2019 612e310008

11-430-700-0010-6201PRI 2/2019 612e310215

11-430-700-0010-6201PRI 2/2019 612e100569

11-479-478-0000-6201PS ALI 2/2019 612e310008

11-479-478-0000-6201PRI 2/2019 612e310215

11-479-478-0000-6201PRI 2/2019 612e100569

11-479-479-0000-6201PS ALI 2/2019 612e310008

11-479-479-0000-6201PRI 2/2019 612e310215

11-479-479-0000-6201PRI 2/2019 612e100569

Total...Warrant #

01-210-000-0000-6201Century Link  (WA) Hader circuit 2/2019 612e318008

Total...Warrant #

01-041-000-0000-6274CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 2018 audit fees 1/30/19 2002294

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXXWarrant Form

N

N

N
N
N
N
N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

21.00 12895

1,589.20 11511

455.90 3501

7,966.97 3501

338.53 3501

338.53 3501

338.54 3501

50.00 6975

881.75 5573

456.29 5573

164.96 5573

853.58 5573

853.58 5573

23.78 5573

23.78 5573

108.66 3266

203.45 12042

11.53 12042

313.98 12042

15.99 12042

109.95 12042

10.99 12042

53.14 12042

75.00 12042

11.00 12042

6.00 12042

17,000.00 443344

21.00 443345

1,589.20 443346

9,438.47 443347

50.00 443348

3,257.72 443349

108.66 443350

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 2Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

81-850-000-0000-2102Conroy/Marilyn 31.002.1700 overpay reissue 438880

Total...Warrant #

01-061-000-0000-6290Crescent Investigative Services Bkgd investigation 12/2018 18091

Total...Warrant #

01-111-112-0000-6301Cummins Npower Llc CAT gnrtr maint 1/28/19 e4-71781

01-111-112-0000-6304Cool sys maint,rpr 12/27/18 e4-65565

01-201-000-0000-6301Gnrtr maint:Aspen twr 1/30/19 e4-71994

01-201-000-0000-6301Gnrtr maint:Sand Hill 1/30/19 e 4-71996

01-201-000-0000-6301Gnrtr maint:CF Twr 1/30/19 e4-72153

Total...Warrant #

01-127-128-0000-6106Drazkowski/Tom Per diem:PAC 2/11/19

Total...Warrant #

01-111-112-0000-6304Emergency Automotive Tech #1726 Intr equip 2/5/19 aw012919-5a

01-111-112-0000-6304#1726 Intr equip 1/30/19 aw012919-5

01-201-000-0000-6303#1621 repl intr equip 2/5/19

34-201-000-0000-6663#1922 equipment 1/30/19 aw012919.2

34-201-000-0000-6663#1928 equipment 1/30/19 aw012919.3

34-201-000-0000-6663#1922 bracket 2/1/19 aw012919-2a

34-201-000-0000-6663#1928 bracket 2/1/19 aw012919-3a

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6201Frontier Communication Phone:Wmngo office 2/4-3/3/19 5078242497

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6453Galls LLC - DBA Uniforms Unlimited Initl uniform:Kelly 1/21/19 11780217

01-201-000-0000-6453Initl uniform:Kelly 1/17/19 11755502

01-201-000-0000-6453Initl uniform:Kelly 1/15/19 11734164

01-201-000-0000-6453Initl uniform:Kelly 1/25/19 11823340

01-201-000-0000-6453ID badge case:Reich 1/14/19q 11723152

01-201-000-0000-6453Initl uniform:Lerfald 1/17/19 11755501

01-201-000-0000-6453Initl uniform:Lerfald 1/14/19 11723127

01-207-000-0000-6453Badge:Bolster 1/22/19 11791416

01-207-000-0000-6453Nametag:Bolster 1/25/19 11824256

01-207-000-0000-6453Captain bars:Agre 1/14/19 11720630

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXXWarrant Form

N

N
N
N
N
N
N

N

N

N

N
N

N
N

N
N

N

N

N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

180.27 3843

199.00 5234

42.72 5234

140.82 5234

50.29 5234

100.00 5234

50.29 5234

662.85 8364

1,625.00 7354

50.00 253

2,657.32 6411

4,379.80 6411

31.50 31480

31.50 31480

21.00 5349

21.00 5349

2,092.56 5349

2,068.05 5349

234.00 5548

811.03 443351

180.27 443352

583.12 443353

662.85 443354

1,625.00 443355

50.00 443356

7,037.12 443357

63.00 443358

42.00 443359

2,092.56 443360

2,068.05 443361

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 3Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6565Goodhue Country Station Diesel 66.79g 1701 4158

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6340HBC Dedicated fiber 2/2019 81677

01-207-240-0000-6340Cable tv 2/2019 80387

01-281-280-0000-6340Cable tv 2/2019 80389

03-330-000-0000-6209Fire alarm lines 93976

61-398-000-0000-6209Internet/Comm RC 81940

61-398-000-0000-6209Fire Alarm Lines 81940

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6851Heritage Pet Hospital Exam,vaccines:Ambush 1/10/19 173740

Total...Warrant #

01-063-000-0000-6301Intradyn Email archiver 3/2019-3/2020 4337

Total...Warrant #

01-127-128-0000-6284Juliar/Joe PAC mtg security 2/11/19

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6324Knobelsdorff Electric Inc St Lts Rpl HPS w/LED Lt Hds (3 122662

03-310-000-0000-6324St Lt Ctrl Box Rpr Bench St #1 122663

Total...Warrant #

01-061-000-0000-6241Lake City Printing Company Empl ad:PW 10/11-10/16/18 46865

01-061-000-0000-6241Empl ad:PW 10/18-10/23/18 46865

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6309License Center #1725 tabs 2/2019 684vtm

01-201-000-0000-6309#1627 tabs 2/2019 350vtn

Total...Warrant #

34-201-000-0000-6663License Center #1928 title/tax 2/2019

Total...Warrant #

34-201-000-0000-6663License Center #1922 title/tax 2/2019

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6454L3 Communications Mobile-Vision Inc L3 m ic 1/22/19 0339912-in

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N

N
N
N
N

N
N

N

N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

1,421.10 12655

386.02 12655

968.50 12655

65.14 13331

29.90 11192

98.18 11192

29.90 11192

49.08 11192

49.08 11192

98.18 11192

29.90 11192

30,973.96 10276

31,350.96 10276

50.00 13333

50.00 13333

27.50 13333

27.50 13333

590.06 8522

505.84 8522

125.00 1187

5.20 7376

183.60 7376

5.20 7376

234.00 443362

2,775.62 443363

65.14 443364

384.22 443365

62,324.92 443366

155.00 443367

1,095.90 443368

125.00 443369

194.00 443370

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 4Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

01-011-000-0000-6285Mayo Clinic Sexl asslt visit 8/27/18 700003101

01-011-000-0000-6285Sexl asslt visit 8/27/18 700003101

01-011-000-0000-6285Sexl asslt visit 7/31/18 700003101

Total...Warrant #

81-850-000-0000-2102MDOT Machine LLC 52.233.0020etc overpay 3086

Total...Warrant #

01-000-000-9001-2021MetLife Dental Dental ins:SMahn 2/2019

01-000-000-9001-2021Dental ins:GSchoener 2/2019

01-000-000-9001-2021Dental ins:MHolst 2/2019

01-000-000-9001-2021Dental ins:MBanks 2/2019

01-000-000-9001-2021Dental ins:RGlasenapp 2/2019

01-000-000-9001-2021Dental ins:RJohnson 2/2019

01-000-000-9001-2021Dental:BGlover 2/2019

Total...Warrant #

34-201-000-0000-6663Midway Ford #1922 2018 Ford Taurus 1/28/19 120712

34-201-000-0000-6663#1928 2018 Ford Taurus 1/28/19 120732

Total...Warrant #

01-127-128-0000-6106Miller/Richard Per diem:PAC 1/14/19

01-127-128-0000-6106Per diem:PAC 2/11/19

01-127-128-0000-6331PAC mileage 1/14/19

01-127-128-0000-6331PAC mileage 2/11/19

Total...Warrant #

03-350-000-0000-6252Minnesota Energy Resources Corp Gas:Zta shop 12/19-1/18/19 504254044-1

03-350-000-0000-6252Gas:Kyn shop 12/19-1/18/19 504254044-2

Total...Warrant #

01-055-000-0000-6357MN Department of Revenue PACE regs 8/26-8/27/19:BS

Total...Warrant #

01-000-000-9001-2022Mn Mutual Life Ins Life ins:SBetcher 2/2019

01-000-000-9001-2022EE Life ins:SBetcher 2/2019

01-000-000-9001-2022Life ins:RAllen 2/2019

Total...Warrant #

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N
N
N

N

N
N

N

N
N

N
N

N

N

N

N
N
N

N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

47.51 1964

47.51 1964

47.51 1964

47.51 1964

47.51 1964

465.00 4948

100.00 12621

100.00 12621

2,079.08 13330

154.72 9516

2,082.95 9516

50.00 5189

43.50 5189

1,700.00 11013

688.80 44321

4,200.00 6418

475.61 6068

325.41 6068

83.50 6068

193.20 12545

165.60 12545

237.55 443371

465.00 443372

200.00 443373

2,079.08 443374

2,237.67 443375

93.50 443376

1,700.00 443377

688.80 443378

4,200.00 443379

884.52 443380

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 5Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

03-350-000-0000-6420Mn Safety Council AED Pads Zta 61694

03-350-000-0000-6420AED Pads RW 61694

03-350-000-0000-6420AED Pads CF 61694

03-350-000-0000-6420AED Pads Kenyon 61694

61-398-000-0000-6420AED Pads-RC 61694

Total...Warrant #

01-207-000-0000-6357Mn Sheriffs Assn Jail academy:Bartsch 3/2019 182420

Total...Warrant #

01-103-000-0000-6357MNDOT Wrkshp regs:Jeff 3/19-3/21/19

01-103-000-0000-6357Wrkshp regs:Dale 3/19-3/21/19

Total...Warrant #

81-850-000-0000-2102Murphy/Amanda 55.837.0140 overpay 1546

Total...Warrant #

01-209-000-0000-6201Nuvera (FKA NU-Telecom) Gdhu backup phone 2/2019 1192564

01-209-000-0000-6283Repl Avaya phone system 1/9 1192564

Total...Warrant #

01-127-128-0000-6106Nystuen/Richard Per diem:PAC 2/11/19

01-127-128-0000-6331PAC mileage 2/11/19

Total...Warrant #

01-063-000-0000-6301Office Of MN.IT Services MNET collab 1/2019 dv19010403

Total...Warrant #

01-127-129-0000-6285Olmsted County Public Health Water testing Q418 wl014002018.3

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6416Red Wing Sportsmens Club Inc 2019 Range fees

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6565River Country Cooperative Diesel 203g #1201 294380

03-340-000-0000-6565Diesel 118.38g #0701 294380

03-340-000-0000-6567Unld 39.32g #0207 294380

Total...Warrant #

01-041-000-0000-6242Rivertown Multimedia 2019 Budget summary 1/26/19 1823930

01-127-128-0000-6242PAC notice 1/26/19 2720481

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXXWarrant Form

N

N
N

N
N

N

N
N

N
N
N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

9,563.18 10581

80.00 8294

170.00 8294

1,234.97 5029

483.15 5029

49.27 13166

50.00 5962

5.34 5962

2,392.70 1831

68.99 1831

68.99 1831

414.83 46300

178.96 3487

51.92 3487

243.63 3487

12.29 3487

678.20 3487

97.32 3487

379.68 3487

14.76 9933

14.76 9933

226.02 9933

15.00 9933

358.80 443381

9,563.18 443382

250.00 443383

1,718.12 443384

49.27 443385

55.34 443386

2,530.68 443387

414.83 443388

1,642.00 443389

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 6Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

01-805-000-0000-6283Safe Assure Consultants Inc. Safety training 2019 1519

Total...Warrant #

01-127-127-0000-6243Se Mn Code Officials 2019 membership:DM, DV

01-127-127-0000-6357Seminar regs:DM, DV 3/19/19

Total...Warrant #

61-397-000-0000-6283Short Elliot Hendrickson Inc Monitor RW Lndf-Reissue 356761

61-397-000-0000-6283Monitor Wan Lndf-Reissue 356762

Total...Warrant #

01-041-000-0000-6244Star Tribune 13 wk subscription 1/12-4/13 12638400

Total...Warrant #

01-127-128-0000-6106Stenerson/Howard Per diem:PAC 2/11/19

01-127-128-0000-6331PAC mileage 2/11/19

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6416Streichers Inc 9mm practice ammo 2/5/19 i1351631

01-207-000-0000-6453Initl uniform:Anderson 1/31/19 i1351073

01-207-000-0000-6453Initl uniform:KAnderson 2/7/19 i1352100

Total...Warrant #

01-111-110-0000-6305Tom Parker Electric Inc Hookup heat pump 2/11/19 9323

Total...Warrant #

03-340-000-0000-6562Towmaster Inc Ears #0601 411855

03-340-000-0000-6562Shaft Retainers 411855

03-340-000-0000-6562Spinner #0601 411855

03-340-000-0000-6562Pipe 24" 411855

03-340-000-0000-6562Hydr Wing Cyl #0901 411855

03-340-000-0000-6562Brace Assemblies 411855

03-340-000-0000-6562Outer Ears #1201 411970

Total...Warrant #

01-103-000-0000-6302Tri-State Business Machines Inc Copies 1/10-2/9/19 451326

01-105-000-0000-6302Copies 1/10-2/9/19 451326

01-127-127-0000-6302Copier 1/10-2/9/19 453670

01-127-128-0000-6302Copies 1/10-2/9/19 451326

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N

N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

226.02 9933

14.75 9933

91.68 3418

210.06 3418

46.16 3418

36.16 3418

177.19 3418

70.02 3418

420.23 3418

61.01 3418

112.02 3418

51.01 3418

46.16 3418

36.16 3418

1,638.35 3418

35.01 3418

1,426.42 3418

87.17 3418

105.03 3418

174.34 3418

35.01 3418

204.04 3418

366.06 3418

46.16 3418

26.02 3418

46.16 3418

105.98 3418

51.01 3418

367.94 3418

35.01 3418

51.01 3418

62.99 3418

229.62 3418

183.61 3418

46.16 3418

51.01 3418

72.32 3418

511.31 443390

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 7Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

01-127-128-0000-6302Tri-State Business Machines Inc Copier 1/10-2/9/19 453670

01-127-129-0000-6302Copies 1/10-2/9/19 451326

Total...Warrant #

01-031-000-0000-6202Verizon Wireless Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-055-000-0000-6206Data cards 12/26-1/25/19 9822996018

01-063-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-091-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-103-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-103-000-0000-6206Data cards 12/26-1/25/19 9822996018

01-111-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-121-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-127-127-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-127-128-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-127-129-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-201-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-201-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-201-000-0000-6206GPS data card 1/2019 9823332852

01-201-000-0000-6206Data cards 12/26-1/25/19 9822996018

01-205-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-205-000-0000-6206Data cards 12/26-1/25/19 9822996018

01-207-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-209-000-0000-6206Data cards 12/26-1/25/19 9822996018

01-210-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-255-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-281-280-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

01-281-280-0000-6206Data cards 12/26-1/25/19 9822996018

01-601-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

03-310-000-0000-6202Maint Cells (2) 783151777

03-310-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

03-320-000-0000-6202Const Cells (6) 783151777

03-320-000-0000-6206Data Cards (1) 783151777

03-330-000-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

03-340-000-0000-6202Mech Cell 783151777

11-420-600-0010-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

11-430-700-0010-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

11-466-462-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

11-466-462-0000-6202Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

11-466-462-0000-6202PEER Cell phone 1/5-2/4/19 9823531773

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXXWarrant Form

N
N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N
N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

195.48 73383

356.40 73383

269.89 73383

299.14 73383

376.71 73383

258.40 73383

26.23 73383

235.20 10333

36.99 10333

19.29 10333

10.82 10333

44.46 10333

78.40 10333

6,804.29 443391

1,782.25 443392

425.16 443393

156,995.03  190

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 8Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6251Xcel Energy Electr:Pioneer Stg 12/30-1/29 625272001

01-201-000-0000-6251Electric:PI twr 12/18-1/21/19 625272001

01-201-000-0000-6251Electric:CF twr 12/19-1/22/19 625272001

01-201-000-0000-6251Electr:Seymour St. 12/30-1/29 625272001

01-201-000-0000-6252Gas:Pioneer Stg 12/30-1/29 625272001

01-209-000-0000-6251Electric:Aspen twr 12/30-1/29 625272001

01-209-000-0000-6252Gas:Aspen twr 12/30-1/29/19 625272001

Total...Warrant #

03-320-000-0000-64051SOURCE Antifatgue Mats (3) 2335190

03-330-000-0000-6402Copy Paper 2334100

03-330-000-0000-6405Pens 2334100

03-340-000-0000-6405Office Supplies-Mech 2334100

61-398-000-0000-6405DOT Insp Clipboard Fox 233410-0

61-399-000-0000-6405Antifatigue Mat Root 233519-0

Total...Warrant #

Warrant Form Total... TransactionsWFXX

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

N

Department Of Transportation-State of MN N

N

N

N
N

N
N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N

N
N

N

N

N
Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

500.00 12044

64.38 1188

1,050.00 14926

1,193.70 1273

50.00 9305

14.50 9305

50.00 11189

27.14 11189

55.90 22150

14.40 3124

161.00 3124

7,850.16 3124

222.36 3124

55.10 3124

87.46 3124

632.50 5570

350.00 5570

43.00 8820

220.00 5019

50.00 8464

500.00 27355

64.38 27356

1,050.00 27357

1,193.70 27358

64.50 27359

77.14 27360

55.90 27361

8,390.48 27362

982.50 27363

43.00 27364

220.00 27365

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 9Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

01-201-000-0000-6342American Tower Corporation 2/2019 Tower rent:Frontenac 405867018

Total...Warrant #

03-320-000-0000-6304Equip Calibration 2019 P10084

Total...Warrant #

01-071-000-0000-6270Election Systems & Software Inc EW reporting 5/2019-7/2019 10748451

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6278Erickson Engineering Co LLC Load Rating Welc Br#L0564 12971

Total...Warrant #

01-127-128-0000-6106Fox/Darwin Per diem:PAC 2/11/19

01-127-128-0000-6331PAC mileage 2/11/19

Total...Warrant #

01-127-128-0000-6106Gale/Thomas Per diem:PAC 2/11/19

01-127-128-0000-6331PAC mileage 2/11/19

Total...Warrant #

01-061-000-0000-6241Grimsrud Publishing Co Employment ads 10/10-10/17/18

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6303Kwik Trip Inc Maint 1/2019 278334

01-201-000-0000-6303Car wash 1/2019 278334

01-201-000-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278334

01-205-000-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278334

01-207-000-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278334

01-281-280-0000-6567Fuel 1/2019 278334

Total...Warrant #

01-201-000-0000-6303L & L Street Rod and Sports Truck #1621 rmv equip 1/29/19 2582

34-201-000-0000-6663#1921 rmv equip #25 1/29/19 2581

Total...Warrant #

03-310-000-0000-6291Mayo Clinic Health System, Red Wing Drug Scrn-Earnest 700003124

Total...Warrant #

61-399-000-0000-6241P Hanson Marketing HHW Thanks-Ag Reporter 302324

Total...Warrant #

01-127-128-0000-6106Pettit/Sarah Per diem:PAC 2/11/19

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County



anderson

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

N

N

N
N
N
N
N
N

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019

31.20 8464

11.00 2442

440.23 11982

440.23 11982

173.77 11982

6,377.42 11982

208.28 11982

6,775.96 11982

81.20 27366

11.00 27367

14,415.89 27368

27,149.69  28

184,144.72  218

To Date
PO #

From Date
Invoice #

Page 10Approved

Account Number
On-Behalf-of-NameOBO#

WARRANT REGISTER

Description
AmountVendor Name

Auditor's Warrants

Vendor #

Auditor Warrants

01-127-128-0000-6331Pettit/Sarah PAC mileage 2/11/19

Total...Warrant #

01-111-112-0000-6304Riester Refrigeration Inc Capacitor fan 1/3/19 83896

Total...Warrant #

01-207-000-0000-6366Summit Food Service LLC Inmate laundry 1/19-1/25/19 2000041761

01-207-000-0000-6366Inmate laundry 1/26-2/1/19 2000042214

01-207-000-0000-6463Condiments 1/19-1/25/19 2000041759

01-207-000-0000-6463Inmate meals 1/19-1/25/19 2000041760

01-207-000-0000-6463Condiments 1/26-2/1/19 2000042212

01-207-000-0000-6463Inmate meals 1/26-2/1/19 2000042213

Total...Warrant #

Warrant Form Total... TransactionsWFXX-ACH

Total... Transactions

Tx

Pay Date

Goodhue County

Final



anderson

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019
Page 11ApprovedWARRANT REGISTER

Auditor's Warrants Auditor Warrants Pay Date

Goodhue County

156,995.03  443393 02/15/2019 02/15/2019 56  443338

27,149.69  27368 02/15/2019 02/15/2019 222.84 26,926.85 14  27355

184,144.72

WARRANT RUN WARRANT STARTING DATE OF DATE OF

FORM WARRANT NO. PAYMENT APPROVAL

PPD CTX

COUNT AMOUNT COUNT AMOUNTWARRANT NO.

ENDING

INFORMATION

WFXX

WFXX-ACH

TOTAL

 11 3



anderson

WFXX-ACHWarrant Form

Copyright 2010-2018 Integrated Financial Systems

02/15/2019
02/15/2019

 9:37AM02/15/2019
Page 12ApprovedWARRANT REGISTER

Auditor's Warrants Auditor Warrants Pay Date

Goodhue County

 1

 3

 11

 34

 61

 81

Health & Human Service Fund

94,435.44 69,156.8325,278.61

15,843.23 14,542.151,301.08

851.80 851.80

68,590.25 68,240.25350.00

2,258.78 2,038.78220.00

2,165.22 2,165.22

184,144.72 27,149.69 156,995.03

RECAP BY FUND

FUND AMOUNT NAME ACH AMOUNT NON-ACH AMOUNT

County General Revenue

County Road and Bridge

-

Capital Plan

Waste Management Facilities

Settlement Fund -

TOTAL TOTAL ACH TOTAL NON-ACH


	PW Roof Award
	Scott O. Arneson

	Goodhue County Public Works Roof LOR and Bid Tabs 2019
	Brian J. Anderson
	Board Totals
	manWarrantRegister02_06_2019_13_43_24
	manWarrantRegister02_13_2019_11_06_48
	manWarrantRegister02_13_2019_11_29_08
	manWarrantRegister02_13_2019_11_29_29
	manWarrantRegister02_13_2019_11_29_51
	manWarrantRegister02_13_2019_11_32_43
	manWarrantRegister02_15_2019_11_15_22
	warrantRegister02_08_2019_09_28_08
	warrantRegister02_15_2019_09_37_24



